
 

 

 

 

 
 

Planning Commission 

Meeting Packet 
 

FOR 

 

June 24, 2014 
At 7 PM 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 

 
 

 

 



 

Meeting documents may be found on the City of Sherwood website or by contacting the Planning Staff at 503-925-2308. 

 City of Sherwood 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Sherwood City Hall  
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR  97140 

June 24, 2014 – 7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call  
2. Agenda Review 
3. Consent Agenda  

a. May 27, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting minutes 
4. Council Liaison Announcements (Robyn Folsom) 
5. Staff Announcements (Brad Kilby) 
6. Community Comments  
7. Old Business  

a. Public Hearing - PUD 14-01, SUB 14-01 Cedar Brook Planned Unit 
Development (Michelle Miller)  

The Planning Commission continues the public hearing from June 10, 2014 for a 
Planned Unit Development proposal to subdivide a 5.77-acre parcel into a sixty-
five lot subdivision for residential use. The property is zoned High Density 
Residential. The applicant proposes 50 attached townhomes and 15 detached 
single-family homes. The lots range from 1,600-3,210 square feet. 
 

The applicant is requesting several zoning exceptions considered through the PUD 
process and other street design modifications that include a private street, varied 
street widths and cross sections that differ from the standards.  The applicant 
proposes areas of private open space and walking trails with a public trail the 
neighborhoods to the west and connecting Lady Fern Park and Laurel and Edy 
Ridge schools with this development. 

8. New Business  
a. Public Hearing – LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

(Brad Kilby) 
 

The Planning commission will consider a 1500 square foot addition to an existing 
house at 22455 SW Oak Street. The property is zoned Medium Density Residential 
Low within the Smockville area of the Old Town Overlay.     

9. Planning Commissioner Announcements  

10. Adjourn  

 



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 1 of 24 

 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Planning Commission 

May 27, 2014 

Planning Commission Members Present:  Staff Present:  
Chair Jean Simson Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
Commissioner John Clifford    Bob Galati, Civil Engineer 
Commissioner Beth Cooke (at 7:05 pm)   Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 
Commissioner Russell Griffin Kirsten Allen, Planning Dept. Program Coordinator 
Commissioner Sally Robinson  
Commissioner Lisa Walker   
 
Planning Commission Members Absent:     
Vice Chair James Copfer     
   
Council Members Present:     Legal Counsel:  
Councilor Robyn Folsom    Chris Crean 
  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Chair Jean Simson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   

2. Agenda Review 

The agenda consisted of the Consent Agenda and a public hearing for the PA 14-01 Transportation 

System Plan Update.    

3. Consent Agenda:   

a. January 28, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

b. February 11, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

c. March 11, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

d. April 8, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

e. May 13, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes    

Chair Simson indicated that she submitted Scrivener’s errors that did not change the content of the 

minutes and recommended that on page 22 of the February 11, 2014 minutes the record show that Mr. 

Tiemann declined an opportunity for rebuttal or additional testimony with his remaining time.    

Commissioner John Clifford indicated that he was present for the February 11th meeting, but in the final 

motion it indicated that he was absent.  Commissioner Clifford’s name was changed to Commissioner 

Walker who was absent at the meeting.  At Commissioner Clifford’s request the first line at the top of page 

23 of the packet was changed to read “Brad responded to a question from Commissioner Clifford and 

commented that…” 

Motion: From Commissioner Russell Griffin to approve the Consent Agenda as amended.  Seconded 

by Commissioner Lisa Walker.  All present Planning Commissioners voted in favor (Vice Chair 

James Copfer was absent). 

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

1



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 24 

 

4. Staff Announcements 

Brad Kilby, Planning Manager, spoke of the first Local Trail Advisory Committee (LTAC) meeting for the 

Cedar Creek Trail that was held on May 15, 2014 at City Hall.  He asked Commissioner Clifford, LTAC 

liaison, to tell about the meeting.   Commissioner Clifford said there was a good turn out and the main 

speaker, from the Tualatin Hills Park and Recreation District (THPRD), was very informative.   

Brad indicated that the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) also held a meeting on May 15th 

about the Ken Foster Farms site in southeast Sherwood.  The DEQ has provided the City with a draft 

copy of the findings in the Remedial Investigation Report, dated May 15, 2014.  The report has been 

placed in the Sherwood Library reference section.    

Brad asked Commissioner Walker, who was in attendance, to convey what happened at the meeting. 

Commissioner Walker said the meeting was meant to be a general information meeting to let the public 

know that the process is ongoing and on hold.  She said the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) may 

change some of the threshold levels allowed for Chromium levels in the soil (they did not indicate whether 

it was up or down) and it may be another year from any conclusions.   Brad said he heard that the 

Chromium was concentrated in certain areas and that there were two types of in it the area.  Commissioner 

Walker said it was a complicated site with a continuing process.   

Julia added that even though nothing on the site may change, the standards change, so the rules and 

complications change too.  She recounted that at the Oregon Brownfields Conference earlier that day the 

tannery and the Ken Foster Farms site was a topic of discussion where even the environmental 

professionals commented on how complicated the site was.    

Note:  a brownfield site is real property where the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be 

complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant 

(www.epa.gov/brownfields/overview/glossary.htm). 

Brad informed the Commission that TriMet has announced that they will be investing in services again and 

will release their Draft Service Enhancement Plan this summer.  He said they have discussed expanding 

service to the YMCA and an option for service between Tualatin and Sherwood.  Brad said the City can 

provide comments to advocate for or against proposed enhancements.    

Brad related that the Friends of the Tualatin River Wildlife Refuge had over a thousand people attend their 

annual Bird Festival and Sherwood is in the running for a $100,000 grant towards a dog park.  The City is 

looking at the west portion of Snyder Park for the first dog park and there is a link on the City website to 

vote for Sherwood.   

Brad thanked the Commission for their commitment to reading all of the material for the Transportation 

System Plan update and pointed out that the consultants role was to:  

 Create a network of connected streets which serve all transportation modes in Sherwood.  

 Create an efficient system that is compliant with state and regional policies.  

 Ensure that all people have access to safe, healthy, convenient and affordable transportation options 

regardless of age, income or other socioeconomic factors.  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

2

http://www.epa.gov/brownfields/overview/glossary.htm


  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 24 

 

 Propose measures, by way of the project list, to the community to help realize a complete system of 

streets, sidewalks, trails, bike lands, and transit amenities.  

Brad said the Planning Commission’s role was as an advisory body to the policy makers, which is the City 

Council.  He said the proposal was a mix of policy and regulation based on engineering data, long range 

forecasting and assumptions that he did not always understand and encouraged members to ask questions.  

Brad advised that the Planning Commission was to make a recommendation to the City Council based on 

the proposal and if the recommendation changed the direction of the policy or regulation, follow up with 

the reasoning for that change would be needed.  He suggested that members ask themselves if they liked 

or disliked the concept, if the language afforded the community an opportunity to study the concept, if it 

was right for the community, and if the City was compliant with state and regional policies.      

Brad reported that there was an article in the May 27, 2014 edition of the Daily Journal of Commerce 

(DJC) about the signal removal and the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) court case.  

5. Council Liaison Announcements 

Councilor Folsom said the Budget Committee passed the budget for the Fiscal Year 2014-15 with a vote 

of 13 to 1, which will go to City Council on June 17, 2014.  She said there was an 11% extra reserve over 

the 20% requirement due to the economy and hard work of staff equivalent to over $900,000. The budget 

committee opted to use approximately $450,000 on one time assets like park equipment replacement, and 

$300,000 would be placed in a reserve account for maintenance of assets built about ten years ago.  

Councilor Folsom mentioned Murdock Park as one of those assets recently finished from funds allocated 

in the last budget cycle.  At Chair Simson’s request, Councilor Folsom explained that the Budget 

Committee is made up of seven citizen volunteers and the seven City Council members.  She added that 

citizen comments were part of the budgeting process and a Budget Committee meeting was held on a 

Saturday to encourage citizen involvement, but it did not.  After the budget is approved by the Budget 

Committee it is forwarded to the City Council for adoption (see the June 17, 2014 agenda) and public 

comment will be allowed at that hearing.   

Councilor Folsom reported that all five of the Charter Amendments on the May ballot had passed by a 

great margin.   

6. Community Comments 

Keith Weir, Sherwood resident came forward and said he drives to Sherwood nearly every day using 

Railroad Street and Main Street.  He spoke of the TriMet bus taking up both lanes [when turning] and of 

instances where either he or the bus had to back up. Mr. Weir recounted that he spoke with the Police 

Department and City staff who told him that TriMet “handles everything”.   He suggested that the City 

not let TriMet handle everything.  Mr. Weir commented that Tualatin Sherwood Road needed more lanes 

and it could be done with the space used by the bike lanes and sidewalks. Mr. Weir commented that Old 

Town had the character to be like Bridgeport in the future and eliminate cars in Old Town except for 

during Cruise-in Sherwood.  

 

Chair Simson explained that Washington County takes care of Tualatin Sherwood Road and it is in their 

plan to widen the road.   

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

3



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 24 

 

Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director, added that there is coordination with TriMet and the 

conversation about routes and the ease of their turning movements could be had.  She responded to Chair 

Simson’s question about which department that would be and said that it was multiple departments: 

Engineering, Public Works, and Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R). 

 

Bob Galati, City Engineer, added that the City Council has directed staff to look into the cost of removing 

the monuments, replacing them with something less site restraining.  It is on the Engineering 

Department’s task list.  

 

7. New Business  

a. Public Hearing – PA 14-01 Transportation System Plan Update 

Chair Simson read the public hearing statement and stated that the Planning Commission would be 

making a recommendation to City Council. She asked for any conflicts of interest.  Receiving none, she 

asked for the staff report.   

Brad Kilby, Planning Manager, gave a presentation (see record, Exhibit 1) and explained that the 

Transportation System Plan was last updated in 2005 except for the minor amendments done for 

individual projects such as Cedar Brook Way, the extension of Baler Way, and Langer Farms Parkway 

North.  He indicated that the update was staff initiated was to amend:  

 Goals and Policies within Chapter 6 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan,    

 City’s Development Code Chapters: 
o 16.10 Definitions 
o 16.80 Plan Amendments 
o 16.90 Site Plan Review 
o 16.94 Off-Street Parking and Loading 
o 16.106 Transportation Facilities 

 2005 Transportation System Plan (superseded if adopted) 

 Map Amendment to remove the trip cap imposed through Ord. 2008-003 regarding the Pfeiffer 
property on Hwy 99W next to Providence Medical.   

 

Brad explained that a traffic analysis was not performed for the Pfeiffer property when Ord. 2008-003 was 
adopted and Council decided that the additional CAP would be put on the property.  As a result of the 
TSP update there has been traffic modeling as retail commercial for the property and that the analysis is no 
longer needed, because measures to mitigate the impacts have been identified.   

Brad explained that the public involvement included two Planning Commission work sessions, a dedicated 

website that was updated at least monthly, two public open houses, a Citizens Advisory Committee that 

met three times, and a Technical Advisory Committee consisting of engineers, planners and policy makers 

from Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), Washington County, Tualatin, Beaverton, and 

Tigard.  He said the Draft TSP has been available to the public for comment since late March, and there 

were several articles about the TSP Update in the Archer or Gazette.   

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

4



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 5 of 24 

 

Brad stated that the proposed amendments meet the necessary approval criteria to justify a Planning 

Commission recommendation for approval of the policy document and Staff recommends that the 

Commission forward a recommendation of approval of the proposed amendments to the Sherwood City 

Council based on the work and input that has been put into this process to date. 

Brad turned the time over to the Bob Galati, City Engineer.  Bob introduced the project consultants Chris 

Maciejewski and Garth Appanaitis from DKS Associates and Darci Rudzinkski with Angelo Planning 

Group.  Mr. Maciejewski gave a presentation (see record, Exhibit 2) and recapped the process to date.  He 

said the process was at the final step of adoption for a process that started about a year ago.  Mr. 

Maciejewski reported that  the planning work done in the city and the region over the past five plus years 

was compiled and the City’s transportation infrastructure inventoried regarding how it was working and 

how people use it in order to identify transportation needs. Then transportation needs were forecasted 20 

years into the future using Metro’s regional forecasting tool to the year 2035.  Mr. Maciejewski stated that 

money available was considered to develop alternatives to meet those transportation needs through multi-

modal transportation projects.  With that we came out with a preferred list of projects and accompanying 

implementing ordinances.   

Mr. Maciejewski gave an overview of what the document contained and said that it sets the vision for the 

community on how the transportation system will help manage growth with strategies to guide in those 

decisions.  He said there is list of future improvement projects that would improve safety, operation, 

mobility, connectivity and other types of transportation needs around the community.  He said one of the 

most important section was the standards which include standards for:  

 Cross-sections – the components of a street, width, sidewalk, etc.  

 Access spacing – how far apart should driveways and roadways be 

 Traffic calming – how to protect the livability for residential neighborhoods as traffic volumes 
increase 

 Connectivity – local street connection 

 Mobility targets – how to manage congestion and how much congestion is acceptable 

Mr. Maciejewski explained that the update was being done, because the 2005 Transportation System Plan 

looked to the year 2020 and a twenty year plan needs to be in place.  He said the update contains an 

updated project list that compiles all the work that has been done over the last five plus years, regional 

projects like the Tualatin Sherwood Road widening project, and concept plans areas.  The project list is a 

little different from the last update and is focused on lower cost strategies used to manage congestion as 

opposed to major capital improvements to widen roadways to build out of congestion.  Mr. Maciejewski 

related that mobility targets are highlighted more in the document and the Capacity Allocation Program 

(CAP) Ordinance is removed.   

Mr. Maciejewski explained that to build the project list the City started by establishing transportation goals 

from goals already in place as policy elements and worked with advisory groups to develop evaluation 

criteria that aligned with those goals. He said the process used revenue constraints and compared the 

evaluation criteria to choose which alternatives made the most sense.   Mr. Maciejewski showed that there 

were two types of projects; conservatively fundable projects which looked at the revenue from the last five 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

5



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 6 of 24 

 

years that can be used on transportation and projected out the next twenty years; projected fundable projects 

take into account the potential growth areas around the city and the revenue that could come in with that.   

Mr. Maciejewski concluded that there was a focus on lower cost items, safety and multi- modal projects 

and roughly a third of the approximated costs are spent on each of the major types of transportation: 37% 

is projected to be used for pedestrian enhancements, 33% for Motor Vehicle, 23% for Bicycle, and 7% on 

Transit.  A more significant component in the 2005 plan was motor vehicle focused.  Mr. Maciejewski said 

the documents list each project by mode and color coded with near term, medium term or long term 

priority.    

Mr. Maciejewski explained that there was updated language in the draft TSP about the Brookman Road 

area as the city coordinated with Washington County in designating that as an arterial roadway, but the 

language acknowledges that there are compatibility issues with the Brookman Road Concept Plan that may 

need further work or revisited.   

Mr. Maciejewski indicated that the City and ODOT staff have been coordinating on the Hwy 99W cross 

sections and are close to having an agreement.  He said TriMet has continued its Local transit service 

enhancements planning and a proposal from them will be coming this summer that will need to be 

incorporated into the TSP in the future.  Mr. Maciejewski advised that the need for parking management 

plan was identified as part of the Sherwood Town Center planning process. He recounted that a statement 

that was added relating support from the community regarding relieving traffic congestion from through 

traffic and support for regional efforts with Washington County or other jurisdictions to get through 

traffic onto Tualatin Sherwood Road or Hwy 99W, giving an option to go around the city.   

Note: Part of the TSP Update includes amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code so that all documents complement each other.  DKS Associates was contracted to work on the 

transportation aspect of the TSP update.  Angelo Planning was contracted to work on Comprehensive Plan and Sherwood 

Zoning and Community Development Code language.   

Darci Rudzinski from Angelo Planning Group explained that she was one of the planners that worked on 

the policies in the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code language.  She explained that the language 

has evolved as a result of feedback from the Planning Commission, the City Council, the Technical and 

Citizen Advisory Committees and City staff.   She related that one of the objectives was to get the 

proposed language in closer compliance with the Regional Transportation Functional Plan, which 

implements that Regional Transportation Plan, as well as the state Transportation Planning Rule. Ms. 

Rudzinski reported that some of the more substantial areas of change being proposed in the code was the 

traffic impact analysis; the code articulates existing city practice that the city uses the impact analysis to 

assess what the impacts of proposed development might be on the transportation system and, if necessary, 

gives the city the power to ask for mitigation to make sure the system is in line with the growth that 

happens.  She added that bicycle parking requirements were clarified, and the CAP program was removed.    

Ms. Rudzinski stated that the changes in the Code and the Comprehensive Plan are intended to reflect 

what is happening in the Transportation System Plan so there is underlying policy that supports what the 

city requires of developments and city improvements when building a new facility for the community.  She 

noted that there were some housekeeping items; if strategies or implementation measures have already 

happened it was suggested they be deleted.  Ms. Rudzinski revealed that some Comprehensive Plan 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

6



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 7 of 24 

 

policies included planning coordination with regional partners like Metro, Washington County and 

ODOT, and added performance targets and measures with a policy that articulates Sherwood’s intention 

to try to adopt measures that reflect Metro targets.  She concluded by saying that the through traffic had 

come up as an issue so there is policy language that encourages regional trips do not occur on local street 

systems.   

Chair Simson proposed that the Commission hear public testimony before the consultants answer 

questions. The Commission was in agreement.    

Brad said there was written testimony submitted by Sherwood resident, Wade Anderson.  Chair Simson 

indicated that the Commission would read the letter after hearing public testimony. 

Ty Wyman, attorney representing Merlone Geier Partners, which owns the Albertsons based shopping 

center on Tualatin Sherwood Road, cited his appreciation for the time and attention given to Merlone 

Geier.  He commented that the article distributed by Brad Kilby did a good job talking about the LUBA 

case regarding the removal of the signal on Tualatin Sherwood Road.  Mr. Wyman mentioned that the TSP 

Update is far beyond the traffic signal, but the signal was important to them.  He said that Merlone Geier 

was not going to ask for any revisions or additions to the proposed update, because the signal is already in 

the existing plan.  Mr. Wyman stated that Merlone Geier is invested in the Sherwood community and 

intends to stay with or without the signal.  He expressed appreciation for time spent by Bob Galati and 

Brad Kilby with himself and his client about property issues and acknowledged that is was not an easy one.   

Anthony Bevel, Sherwood resident said he has lived in Sherwood for sixteen years and told the 

Commission that SW Lynnly to SW Houston serves as cut through streets from Roy Rogers Road to Edy 

Road.  He commented that drivers go very fast through the neighborhood and said he would like to see 

traffic calming devices placed on the street.  Mr. Bevel said that he has picked up dead animals and 

described the difficulty in retrieving his mail at 5:30 pm, because of the danger. He asked the City to put 

traffic calming devices on his street to correct the bad behavior.  Mr. Bevel added that he had been told 

the reason for not having traffic calming devices was, because of the damage caused to emergency vehicles 

and he did not find it acceptable.   

Mr. Bevel asked how a pedestrian was expected to get to the south side of Sherwood and commented that 

twenty years from now he did not see it happening.  He commented about living near the Ross Island 

bridge that had a pedestrian bridge across Powell Blvd.   

Eugene Stewart, Sherwood property owner said as a member of the Citizen’s Advisory Committee he 

felt that there was not sufficient time to discuss a number of topics and he felt as though the process was 

rushed to satisfy Metro instead of looking at the needs of the citizens.   He asked that the Planning 

Commission continue the hearing and leave it open for public comment.   Mr. Stewart commented 

regarding a bypass around Sherwood and advised at that when the Dundee Newberg bypass is built, 

Sherwood will see more truck traffic.  He said trucks currently cut over to Salem and when the bypass is 

done it will create a better situation to drive up here instead of going through Salem.   

Mr. Stewart told of a property owner on Roy Rogers Road who may develop that was told by Washington 

County planners that the road will be five lanes by 2018 from Scholls Ferry Road to Hwy 99W.  He asked 

what would happen to the neighborhoods then and stressed the importance for Sherwood to look at a 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

7



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 8 of 24 

 

bypass around our core area so traffic that does not want to stop in Sherwood can get through without 

causing traffic jams.  He said that evening traffic can back up to the junkyard, which was unacceptable, and 

suggested that 90% of evening traffic through Old Town does not stop. Mr. Stewart urged that Sherwood 

look more seriously at where is traffic coming from, where is it going, and how it can be handled.  He 

commented that Metro was pushing against single occupant vehicles and traffic counts done in the 

evening when commercial trucks were no longer on the road or are from 2010. Mr. Stewart asked how the 

recession has affected truck traffic and suggested that bicycle and pedestrian counts at major intersections 

be completed. He commented that some counts showed only one bicycle to four pedestrians and asked 

why plans to accommodate bicyclists were being moved forward when there is no demand.  Mr. Stewart 

commented that the plans show where the bicyclist could go, but not where they were coming from.  He 

asked where skate boarders would go and said there were a number of things he would like discussed, but 

four minutes was not enough time.  

With no other public testimony, Chair Simson called for a recess at 8:03 pm and reconvened at 8:12 pm. 

The letter from Wade Anderson (read by Commissioners during the break) was labeled Exhibit G in the 

PA 14-01 file.   

Chair Simson advocated discussing the questions raised by public comment first and asked about the 

process for getting traffic calming implemented.  

Bob Galati responded that the City receives complaints through either the Engineering or Police 

Department. The Police Department determines, through an investigation of the complaint, what the 

traffic conditions are like.  He said they may run a traffic count scenario that collects data such as speed, 

number of cars, and determine if the average speed is it hitting the 85% or are they exceeding it.  If it is a 

speed issue they will do enforcement, because it is a safety issue.  Bob said that traffic volume was more a 

quality of life issue and the City will try to change the system to make the drivers go a route other than 

through the subdivision.  He related that with Mr. Bevel’s subdivision stop signs were added at every 

intersection, but the City has not revisited to see if there has been a change.  Bob explained that the 

process is to go back and check if the change had a positive effect and if not, decide on the next 

implementation; what least option works the best and then ratcheting it up.   

Chair Simson summarized that the citizen has an opportunity aside from the TSP process to raise the level 

of awareness through staff, Police and the City Council.  Bob confirmed that there was an internal process 

to address the issue.  Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director, added that the City is developing a 

more formal traffic calming program.  She set forth that the City plans to address concerns as they arise 

and consider the impacts on the local roadways when money is allocated for traffic improvements on 

major roadways through the capital improvement program.   

Chair Simson commented that in the TSP there is a collector street from Roy Rogers Road to Sherwood 

Blvd, D29, identified as a long term project.  Chris Maciejewski confirmed and said that the project came 

from collector grid spacing and Metro’s requirement for having a complete grid.  Chair Simson 

commented that there could be potential relief for Lynnly/ Houston in the long term.   

Chair Simson asked regarding additional pedestrian crossings in the update.  Mr. Maciejewski answered 

that crossings have been identified at the signalized locations; for example crossings on both sides of Edy 

Road crossing Hwy 99W.  He added that the Cedar Creek Trail has a grade separated crossing in the long 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

8



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 9 of 24 

 

term.  Chair Simson asked about a crossing on Langer Farms Parkway between Century Drive and Oregon 

Street for safety purposes.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that crossings were at the intersections and in order 

to have a safe crossing at another location it may need more than striping.  He suggested that an enhanced 

crossing might be added as a TSP project.  The Commission was in favor of adding it.   

Chair Simson addressed Mr. Stewart’s request to continue the hearing and said in a quasi-judicial hearing 

the body is obligated to keep the record open if a continuance is requested. She asked if this was true for a 

legislative hearing.  Chair Simson commented that the public could testify at the City Council level.  Chris 

Crean, City attorney, answered that it was not a legal requirement, because it was not in the statute.  He 

said it was required in a quasi-judicial, but not in a legislative context.  

Chair Simson began the Commission’s comments by turning to Volume 2 of the TSP documents, Section 

A, page 4.  She noted the Tualatin Sherwood Industrial Area and expressed a concern that the Tonquin 

Employment Area (TEA) was not called out and asked how the TEA was incorporated into the plan.  Mr. 

Maciejewski responded that Volume 2 was documentation of the context setting exercise for the project 

where all of the currently adopted plans were reviewed and said this particular language came from Metro’s 

TSP plan.  He said the land use and the transportation system from the concept planning for the TEA 

were incorporated into the analysis.  He suggested that a footnote could be added to clarify the reference, 

but it would not change the analysis.  The Commission was in favor of adding it.   

Chair Simson referred to the footnote 11 on page 5 and asked that it show the Sherwood Town Center as 

adopted instead of being considered for adoption.   

Chair Simson turned to page 9 of the same section and asked how Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan 

(RTP) regarding non-single occupancy vehicles targets applied to Sherwood.  She remarked that Sherwood 

is outside of the Portland area and not covered well by transit.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that Metro 

establishes the targets for the region and their targets vary by area; outer neighborhoods have different 

targets than inner neighborhoods, town centers, or employment areas.  He expressed that the designations 

in Metro’s 2040 Concept Plan for Sherwood are equivalent to what would be seen for other suburban 

areas around the region and not unique. He added that the City has to incorporate the targets into the TSP 

and Sherwood is compliant with those targets or moving towards those targets in the twenty year plan.  

The analysis in the plan shows that all areas of town, except the very northeastern portion off of Cipole 

Road, are in compliance with the targets and no specific strategies are needed to address shortcomings.   

Chair Simson asked for confirmation that Sherwood was already in compliance or moving towards 

compliance with Metro’s targets.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed and clarified that the Regional 

Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) had a series of development alternatives the City needed to go 

through starting with operational enhancements, pedestrian and bicycle projects and building up to major 

capacity projects. He said that the process itself is one of the ways Metro dictates that communities move 

towards those targets in the process of updating the plan.  

Chair Simson expressed her concerns with applying Metro’s standards to our unique community and said 

we should try to preserve the small town community feeling when reviewing the document.  She said she 

has spoken with others in the community with the same concerns regarding Metro.   

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

9



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 10 of 24 

 

Mr. Maciejewski discerned that if Sherwood was not meeting the targets and Metro was forcing action the 

City did not want, then it would be a greater issue.  He said the findings of the analysis were not used to 

modify the project lists or the policies and advocated that the Commission address concerns with Metro in 

the long term, if it becomes an issue.  Chair Simson asked if that applied to the draft goals, strategies and 

policies should the Commission change items in the draft TSP, because they did not meet the community 

vision and if the Commission was in jeopardy of violating Metro standards that would cause funding to be 

cut.   

Darci Rudzinski responded that the changes in the document reflect the multi-modal goals and non-single 

occupant vehicle (SOV) targets which are now in the document, because they were not strongly 

emphasized in the policy language or needed clarification that Sherwood was part of regional planning 

process.  She said the recommended language could be modified to better reflect the community and it 

was the appropriate time to do that. Ms. Rudzinski said the targets in the Regional Transportation 

Functional Plan (RTFP), and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) are high level and all-encompassing of 

the region. She remarked that Sherwood has representation at Metro and is represented on the technical 

advisory and policy advisory committees, and has a Metro councilor.  Sherwood’s plan should reflect the 

community’s goals and recognize that Sherwood is part of a region with regional aspirations.   

On that point, Chair Simson turned to page 12 of Section A under the heading Metro RTP Near-term 

goals, which is within the next one to four years, where it says that alternatives analysis for high capacity 

transit (HCT) corridor should be completed.  She enquired how that would be integrated into our 

community.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that it was in reference to the ongoing Southwest Corridor 

planning process underway that Metro was leading and not a new effort that Sherwood would undertake.  

Julia Hajduk concurred, suggesting that it could be clarified specifically as the Southwest Corridor project.  

A process that has decided not to bring high capacity transit (HCT) to Sherwood, but that Sherwood is 

part of the planning effort with local transit service connecting into the HCT in Portland, Tigard, and 

Tualatin.    

Chair Simson sought confirmation that the document was what Metro was requesting of us and by being 

included in the Southwest Corridor study area, even though Sherwood is not part of the HCT solution, it 

is connected locally through enhanced transit service through Tualatin.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that 

the goal is reached by participating in the planning processed which looks at the overall corridor strategies.    

Discussion followed with a reference to the Southwest Corridor process being added to the draft 

document.   

Ms. Rudzinski commented that the Plan and Policy Summary was, a background policy document, done at 

the beginning of the process to illustrate all of the planning documents that informed the transportation 

planning process.  It does not obligate the City to do anything, but identified anything that could be 

relevant to developing the TSP update. 

Chair Simson remarked that the only process she knew to review the Draft TSP was to start at the 

beginning and go through page by page.  She turned to Volume 1 of the TSP documents, page v, Traffic 

Calming. She asked regarding traffic calming and if the process needed to be called out in more detail; how 

does a citizen requests traffic calming per the TSP?  Julia responded that it was not appropriate to have 

that level of detail in the TSP and it was more of process of policy and the Community Development 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

10



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 11 of 24 

 

Department was working on a more comprehensive traffic calming program.  Even once that has been 

completed it would be part of the Municipal Code not the TSP.  Chair Simson asked if it should be part of 

the goals, policies, or strategies in the Comprehensive Plan.  Julia concurred that it could be in the 

Comprehensive Plan as a goal to have a traffic calming program, but it would not identify the process.   

Mr. Maciejewski added that there are standards in Volume 2 around which types of traffic calming 

treatments are appropriate on which types of facilities which came from Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 

(TVF&R).  He explained that TVF&R went to all of their cities and counties in their service area and 

coordinated on what was acceptable for their primary response routes based on safety and impacts on 

travel time.   

Ms. Rudzinski added that Goal 3, Policy 10 is an existing policy that discusses traffic calming: the city will 

establish and maintain a set of guidelines and standards for traffic calming measures to retrofit existing streets and as part of 

land use review.  Chair Simson suggested a corresponding strategy to implement a traffic calming plan.   

Bob Galati, City Engineer, provided that there was language in the Traffic Calming section should change 

from the Sherwood “Public Works” department to the “Community Development” department.  

Chair Simson pointed to the Street Cross-Sections standard on page v and asked about the last sentence 

which reads: In constrained situations, a design exception may be allowed through a variance procedure.   She said in the 

development code a “variance” was a term used in land use application and in this context the street cross 

section would go through a “design exception”.  Bob agreed and explained that in the Engineering Design 

Manual described how to apply for a design variation, the internal review process, and the appeal process 

to City Council.  Chair Simson requested to change the language from a variation procedure, which is already 

defined in the code, to a design exception process.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 37, project D24, Sherwood Blvd Intersection Modifications: remove 

the Sherwood Blvd/Langer Drive traffic signal (allow right-in, right-out, and left-in movement only), and install a traffic 

signal at the Sherwood Blvd/Century Drive intersection (add eastbound and westbound left turn lanes).  She commented 

that this was a topic of the [written] testimony and expressed her concern.   Chair Simson acknowledged 

that technically it was the correct project, but asked, as citizens of Sherwood, if it was politically and 

emotionally correct to remove the light.  She argued that the consultants and staff provided technically 

correct answers from Metro, ODOT, and computer models, but just as Villa Road was removed from the 

last TSP, did the Commission believe the signal should be removed in the short term.   

Commissioner Cooke indicated that she had concerns about removing the light and said she would like to 

see the impact of the new road going in off of Tualatin Sherwood Road first.  She acknowledged that the 

removal of the light may be an eventuality, but she was concerned of the impact on the retail areas nearby 

that already had vacant issues.  Discussion followed.  Bob Galati clarified that the removal of the light 

would make access right-in/right-out only and the project tries to correct an existing deficiency in how 

traffic backs up at the highway light through the intersection at peak times during the day.  He added that 

Dutch Bros was required to make improvements to prevent turning movement and traffic stacking onto 

Century Drive.  Bob explained that the identified project solution is to move signals around, but there is 

no indication of whether it will get worse.  He commented that it was more appropriate to determine 

whether it was a short term project, medium term, or long term project.  Commissioner Cooke 

commented on how long the Kohl’s location was empty and wanted to give them a chance to survive.  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

11



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 12 of 24 

 

With the Commission’s agreement, Chair Simson requested that project D24 be moved. She noted that the 

project list can change at the desire of City Council.  

Julia Hajduk added that when the City Engineer prepares the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), a five year 

plan, the City looks at funds available, project costs, priorities, impacts, and need.  She said the preparation 

process for the CIP may become more publically inclusive.  Julia stated that if a project is listed as short 

term, but there was no public support or dire need it would not be included in the CIP.  If a project is 

listed as long term and citizens are eager about getting the project done it might be moved up in priority.  

Chair Simson said that it was a $900,000 project and if it moved to an aspirational list it would free up 

funds for more appealing projects.   

Commissioner Griffin indicated that he would like to wait and see how the overall traffic pattern is 

affected by other signaling changes and suggested the project be placed on the medium term list.  He said 

he did not want to leave it on the short term list.  Mr. Maciejewski reminded the Commission that there 

was a major retail development on the east end of the corridor which showed the Century Drive/ 12th 

Street as a key corridor.   

Commissioner Cooke commented that she was not comfortable killing off an existing retail in favor of 

another and she would like to see how it played out.  Discussion followed.  

Chair Simson stated that she could see the benefit of the light on Century Drive, but did not see it as a 

short term project that needs to be done right now without roads in place and suggested medium term.  

The Commission was in agreement.  

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 39, Project P44, Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 1, and 

asked if the project was supposed to be a short term project.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that is was, but 

was missed when the draft document was edited.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 44, Figure 14 and asked if the map was presented to the Technical 

Advisory Committee or Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that he did not think 

the map had been presented, but that it was a graphic representation of the strategies discussed with the 

committees with options for enhancing local transit service and providing connections to Tualatin.  He 

said they were routes where local service would be an option and if a local was study done regarding local 

transit routes, these were the prioritized locations.  Commissioner Griffin questioned if it would be 

TriMet, or a local city service.  Mr. Maciejewski said it could be either, but the map was showed the larger, 

arterial collector roadways that might be appropriate for a transit service route.    

Chair Simson asked how this impacted the developer when an application came in if a wider road would 

be required.  Brad commented that he would point it out to TriMet when notifying them of the project 

and see what kind of comment they provide.  He said if TriMet was not going to provide transit service, 

there would be no issues and until transit is within a quarter of a mile of a site, the city does not generally 

require anything of a developer and ask TriMet what they have planned for the area 99% of the time they 

don’t respond.  Chair Simson clarified that the existing blue colored line impacted current development 

and provides an opportunity if TriMet decides to connect Sherwood to Tualatin.  Brad responded that 

there is talk in the Service Enhancement Plan of looking down Tualatin Sherwood road or to the YMCA.  

There may be opportunities on the blue line, but TriMet already stops where they want and the map was 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

12



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 13 of 24 

 

more of an indicator to the city staff.  Maciejewski added regarding traffic calming that if there was a 

proposal to do any modification to any roads to narrow or put in “vertical deflection devices” speed 

humps the transit routes should be cross referenced when making those decisions.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 57, Truck Routes, where ODOT and Washington County identify 

Hwy 99W and Tualatin Sherwood /Roy Rogers Road as truck routes and that the city cannot limit the 

volume to capacity (V/C) ratio.    She explained that on page 55 it indicates that within the Sherwood 

Town Center, which includes Hwy 99W and Tualatin Sherwood /Roy Rogers Road, the traffic will be 

allowed to be over capacity.  She asked regarding this discrepancy.  Mr. Maciejewski explained that the 1.1 

v/c is part of metro’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and should also match the Oregon Plan for that 

area and is an overlay that would supersede the freight route mobility standard for ODOT.   He said that 

Washington County, who manages Tualatin Sherwood Road, does not necessarily comply with what Metro 

has in the RTP and when doing something on Tualatin Sherwood Road, Washington County standards 

trump. When doing something on the highway system, ODOT standards apply, but they are consistent 

with Metro in the Town Center overlay.  He said the freight routes outside of the Town Center have a 

certain standard and roads inside the Town Center apply a new Town Center standards.   

Chair Simson asked if the City was setting up for failure.  She went on the say that the standard for 

Washington County and ODOT was .99 and .90 and the City says it will allow 1.1 capacity on our Town 

Center which is over 100%.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that it was being done on facilities that were not 

Sherwood’s and those agencies have said they want to plan for that, because otherwise they would have to 

spend a lot more money that they do not have to avoid congestion issues.  It is how the County chooses to 

manage their system and planning for more than 1.1 v/c capacity, which means is that they is anticipating 

that demand will spread into multiple hours, people will change driving behavior; there will be more 

congestion in those areas, and traffic queues will get longer. 

Commissioner Cooke asked if those agencies were planning for more congestion in order to save money 

that it would cost to relieve in our small town.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that it was not just for 

Sherwood, but part of the statewide and regional policy.  Ms. Rudzinski added that planning and building 

for that type of congestion may give facilities that are larger and may destroy downtown as well.  You can 

try to build your way out of congestion, but the roadways you end up with are very wide.   

Chair Simson said she was reading a concern into it.  Mr. Maciejewski expressed that it was a tough 

balance. Commissioner Griffin added the plan mentions the effect of a change to the footprint of an 

intersection several times.  He said the intersections were rated with possible solutions.  He said some of 

the solutions were ranked lower than others, but were more palatable, because it was less infrastructure 

coming into the city.  He said having 1.1 v/c was better than having eight lanes.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 67-68, Transit Service Enhancements and said it was her two 

greatest concerns about projects going forward and making sure the language allows citizen input.  It talks 

about high capacity transit.  In the last paragraph it says:  While it have been determine that high capacity transit 

(HCT) will not be provided from Portland to Sherwood through the current Southwest Corridor planning process, it is 

possible that HCT to Sherwood may be reconsidered in the long term.  Chair Simson suggested language indicating 

that HCT, in the long term, would go through another public process.  Julia responded that HCT is not 

coming to Sherwood and that was valid to acknowledge that if it is considered it would be through another 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

13



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 14 of 24 

 

regional planning process not because there is a sentence about it in the TSP.  Mr. Maciejewski concurred 

and said the language was consistent with the Sherwood Town Center process.  Discussion followed and 

staff was directed add the language, suggested by Chair Simson, to the plan.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 67 and said the Brookman Road Concept Plan was mentioned in 

the plan several times that Washington County wants to designate Brookman Road and arterial road.  She 

explained that Brookman Road in the Concept Plan, as approved by City Council, as a collector route with 

several streets connecting to it. Chair Simson said she could not support the TSP that calls Brookman 

Road an arterial and inconsistent with the Brookman Road Concept Plan.  She said the Concept Plan 

should be revisited.  The spacing for the collector was set at 100-400 spaced roads, if it is made an arterial 

it would have 600-1000 foot spacing and a lot of people would be driving through small neighborhoods to 

get to a very big road and the plan did not intend this.   Commissioner Griffin commented that the 

property was inside our Urban Growth Boundary, but not inside the City limits and the County’s road.  He 

said he felt the County was mandating the road to be five lanes and he was not in favor of it.  Chair 

Simson asked if the City could designate the road to be a collector and force the County to come before 

the Planning Commission to change it to an arterial.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that the County has 

jurisdiction over the roadway so their road designation trumps the City’s designation.  He said if a land use 

action for the property was submitted, the County would make the decision.  Chair Simson stated that 

scenario is okay so long as the area was in Washington County, because the project will be completed to 

County Standards, but if the area is annexed into our city the Comprehensive Plan and the Brookman Area 

Concept plan will be in play and there would be a conflict.   

Chris Crean commented that, absent an agreement between the County and the City, both comprehensive 

plans can’t apply at the same time; it is one or the other.  So long as the road is outside of the city, the 

County’s comp plan applies.  He reminded that Brookman Road is a County road and some roads 

automatically transfer jurisdictions with an annexation while others are subject to a transfer process.  Mr. 

Crean said that if the county transfers the road to the City then Sherwood’s Comp Plan applies.   

Julia specified that the zoning is not for a collector road, but the street spacing that was illustrated in the 

concept plan shows spacing much closer together and it was envisioned that it was going to be a collector 

road.  She said that if it comes in as an arterial road and the county standards apply the zoning does not 

change, but there would be wider spacing.  That does not mean that we would not want to review if the 

planned zoning on an arterial road was still appropriate.  

Chair Simson explained that she was part of the Brookman Road Concept planning and she was looking at 

the zoning map that lays out all of the zoning and language in the Comprehensive Plan with the roads.  In 

there is says a significant challenge to development of the Brookman Road area is providing connections to the surrounding 

street network without degrading livability on residential streets.  When created the plan anticipated light industrial, 

neighborhood commercial with a lot of density next to 99w anticipating that people would be able to 

access it.  She said that if they cannot access Hwy 99W then they will use Middleton Road to get to Sunset 

or down the road 1000 feet to go through a residential neighborhood and she had great concerns that we 

will be sending commercial traffic through neighborhoods to get to get to Hwy 99. 

Bob interjected that in his discussions with the County they said it would not happen, County arterial 

spacing standards cannot be maintained with that development and an already concept planned area with 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

14



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 15 of 24 

 

the spacing requirements.  He explained that normally there could be a parallel collector status road that 

would connect to the arterial at the appropriate spacing levels, but that is not going to work there, because 

the spacing is too narrow, with topographic constraints, the vegetative corridor and presence of the 

railroad that chops it up.  Bob said there is no way to meet the County’s spacing standards for an arterial 

and be able to develop the area.  He commented that the other aspect is that the identified southern 

connector is not set up, they want to go further south, but cannot, because of political lines.   It is a 

roadway that has been overlaid for political expediency and even if the County indicated it would be 

twenty years before constructing the southern connector there was a question of what happens with all the 

road connections.  The area will develop and the properties will have to have local road connectors. Bob 

said it will have to be a compromise, that is why it is a redefinement area and the Concept Plan will have to 

be looked at again.   

Mr. Maciejewski added that it was important to understand the context. This is the I-5 /99 connector 

southern arterial that the County is talking about and they believe it is important.  He said the City 

supports a strategy for roads to bypass the city and the County cannot show the line south of Brookman 

Road, because that would be outside the Urban Growth Boundary.   The County needs to adopt their plan 

with the connector shown on Brookman Road and they want to move ahead with the arterial shown there.  

He said the County has suggested policy language acknowledging that there is a functional need for both 

types of roads in the area; one to move regional traffic and one to provide access to Brookman Road and 

the County will have to look case by case as development comes in and cannot legally land lock properties 

and say there is no access unless they buy the property.   Mr. Maciejewski acknowledged that there will 

have to be compromises until additional planning work is done and The County may have to apply for a 

goal exception to move the arterial alignment south of Brookman Road.   

Commissioner Griffin asked why the County was designating only a portion of the road if they do not 

have a plan for the southern extension of I-5.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that from 124th Ave east they 

do, from Ladd Hill to 99W is Brookman Road, and the part in between goes through Clackamas County 

and they do not have control over that area.  He said The RTP has the entire corridor in the plan and 

when the I-5/ 99 Connector Study was completed it showed a fairly straight east to west alignment across 

the area that would require major grading work to get through the hills.   

Bob said the language in the TSP update was approximately three months of negotiation with County 

Planning and it was the best compromise to provide assurances for the developer’s expectations, and still 

give the city the flexibility to change the plan to meet needs as they occur.   He said it is a difficult situation 

to get both the city and county TSPs to align.   

Commissioner Griffin asked if the city could show support a bypass route that would take traffic out of 

populated areas.  Chair Simson expressed her concern for the language that said the long term intent is to re-

evaluate the Brookman Addition Concept Plan.  She asked if long term meant after the area is annexed in and 

then change the plan for the property owners.  She commented that it would be a staff level and a funding 

issue to revisit the concept plan to match the arterial.   

Julia added that the reevaluation could happen at any time; if funding can be obtained, concurrent with 

annexation discussions, after annexation.  She explained that re-planning and re-zoning happen often, it is 

not unheard of to do after annexation and a conversation to have with property owners.   

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

15



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 16 of 24 

 

Commissioner Sally Robinson said she would be more comfortable with language at the bottom of page 

67 where it says In the interim to provide for future flexibility, Brookman Road has been designated as an arterial with a 

5-lanes of right away needed if it indicated that the County was identifying the road as an arterial.   

Chair Simson asked regarding the County giving the road to the City and reverting access spacing that 

complies with the concept plan.  Mr. Maciejewski advised that if the County was preserving the roadway 

corridor for the southern arterial they were unlikely to hand the road over.  Bob added that if the County 

could build the corridor further south they may be amenable to if it the City wanted it.  The Commission 

requested to add “by Washington County” to the document. Julia reminded the Commission that the city 

was required to have our TSP to be consistent with the County’s TSP and Metro RTP.    Julia indicated 

that the City did discuss this with the county, regarding the arterial, but in the end the two documents have 

to be consistent and we cannot adopt something that is blatantly not.   Chair Simson asked if the County 

was willing to incorporate the Brookman Concept Plan into their document.  Bob answered that the 

County had worked the flexibility into the language that allows the concept plan to be looked at and the 

need to be flexible in applying county standards for development in the area.  Mr. Maciejewski 

acknowledged that it was not the ideal and the desired function is to have no access except at a few arterial 

street connections based on the TSP language for the eastern portion of the corridor from 124th to I-5.  

With the language proposed for Brookman Road the county shows that they realize they cannot have that 

type of access control.   The language in the County’s TSP is “cut and pasted” into the City’s.  Bob added 

that the language was what staff worked together with the County that was acceptable. Commissioner 

Griffin commented that it was a triumph considering that the City does not even own the road. Staff was 

requested to add “designated by Washington County” to the document. 

Commissioner Robinson asked regarding Langer Farms Parkway near Home Depot.  She referred to 

project D12 on the project list which extends it to the other side of 99W and asked if it was considered to 

have Langer Farms Parkway wider to accommodate the growth from the Walmart coming in to town and 

the other traffic that will be created by that.  Mr. Maciejewski replied that the volume demand for the road 

was projected for the next twenty years and when the concept plan for the area was designed the city took 

into account all of the potential development in the area and forecast out twenty years to see if there was 

enough demand to warrant a four or five lane corridor. At the time there was not enough demand to use it 

as a short cut route, but primarily to provide access and the decision was to design it as a two to three lane 

roadway.  Chair Simson asked if none of the modeling for the road from Oregon Street to Home Depot 

projected more than one lane each way.  Mr. Maciejewski affirmed.    

 

Commissioner Robinson expressed her surprise and expressed that she thought it should be part of a long 

term plan to expand the roadway if development warrants it.  Chair Simson commented that designating it 

as a larger road would require a larger right of way than is currently required.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed 

and said that by adopting the road as a larger corridor a right of way dedication would be required from 

future developments.  He commented that there would be no technical basis for justifying a larger corridor 

and questioned if that would cause issues.  Bob related that staff could provide the technical basis for the 

road designations and said to speculate on the future size of the road or the business development without 

the technical support leaves the City open to being challenged at all levels the first of which would be an 

appeal that the City would lose.  Mr. Maciejewski related that the study did not indicate a huge demand 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

16



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 17 of 24 

 

using the link from Tualatin Sherwood to 99W north towards Tigard; coming south from Tigard to 

Tualatin was not a huge demand. The major regional demand is crossing the highway to Roy Rogers or 

south to Newberg and of all those origins of destinations. It is the least dominant traffic stream.  After a 

comment from Commissioners Walker and Simson that they plan using the road, Mr. Maciejewski stated 

that the road will be utilized by local traffic, but local traffic generally are not enough to trigger a multi-lane 

roadway.  Commissioner Walker said she expected traffic from Tigard turning left at the Home Depot to 

cut through to Tualatin Sherwood Road to avoid the traffic stacking at the light at Tualatin Sherwood 

Road and Hwy 99W.  Mr. Maciejewski reminded the Commission to remember that SW 124th Ave going 

south of Tualatin Sherwood down to Tonquin Road, into the north Wilsonville area, so all the 

Tigard/northern Tualatin demand will use the 124th corridor to go north/south through the area, which 

may explain the projections.   

Commissioner Robinson asked regarding upgrades to Tonquin Road.  Mr. Maciejewski indicated that the 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Washington County’s TSP have upgrades to Tonquin Road, not 

to a five lane road, but a standard two lane road with upgrades to an urban standard east into Tualatin’s 

planning area with three lanes, sidewalks and bike lanes.   

Bob read on page V of the Preface, Transportation Standards, Street Cross-Sections where it states that new 

streets shall meet the design requirement in Sherwood’s Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual per the functional class 

in the TSP was referring to the street cross sections.  He said the cross section requirements need to be part 

of the TSP and the design manual concurs with the TSP and may even show the same details.    Bob 

explained that, as the City Engineer, he was following the TSP as far as the standard for road sections; 

designation and physical standard.  He stated that details (Figure 8-2 to Figure 8-6) needed to be in the 

TSP documents.  The language Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual per the functional class in the TSP was 

changed to Transportation System Plan per Figures attached.   

Chair Simson moved to page 53 of the Planning Commission packet to the Proposed Transportation 

Goals and Policies and asked for comments.  Receiving none, she turned to page 57 and expressed that 

she thought Strategy 4: Plan for an array of transportation assets and services to meet the needs of the transportation –

disadvantaged, was a duplicate of Goal 5: Provide reliable convenient transit service to Sherwood residents and businesses 

as well as special transit options for the City’s elderly and disable residents.  Darci Rudzinski responded that she did 

not think the strategy was as narrow as just planning for transit.   

Chair Simson read Strategy 5: Evaluate, identify, and map existing and further neighborhoods for potential small scale 

commercial businesses to primarily serve local residents.   She said this was an existing strategy and that the 

commentary suggested that the strategy be reevaluated to ensure that is continues to be relevant and match 

the city’s priorities. She asked if there was ever a need to rezone from residential to commercial and if it 

was a strategy that was needed in the TSP.  Ms. Rudzinski responded that the strategy was related to Policy 

4: The City shall encourage the use of more energy efficient and environmentally sound alternatives to the automobile by: (last 

bullet) encouraging the development of self-contained neighborhoods, providing a wide range of land use activities within a 

single area.  She said it was likely the City was looking at mixed use neighborhoods with a small commercial 

serving the neighborhood through a convenience store or hair salon that would not attract a lot of traffic 

but serve the needs of the immediate neighborhood.  The strategy was there to ensure those uses were 

allowed in the right places and not just everywhere.   Commissioner Griffin commented that it said 

potential and that action was not required. He said it could apply to the edge between Brookman Road 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

17



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 18 of 24 

 

residential the commercial properties and the strategy was not irrelevant yet.  Chair Simson suggested that 

it was more for the existing neighborhoods like the southeast Sherwood area.  The strategy remained.   

Chair Simson turned to page 60, Goal 2, Strategy 7: Adopt performance measures that are consistent with regional 

modal targets for non-single occupancy vehicles and track the City’s progress with meeting adopted goals and policies each 

successive TSP update.  Chair Simson suggested to add “based on local community goals” and said she did 

not like having to adopt Metro’s standards without applying community values.  Ms. Rudzinski suggested 

“consistent with community values”, which was accepted by the Commission.   

Chair Simson turned to page 66, Goal 3, Strategy 12 it has deleted language and with the new language that 

says Support public or private development of the bicycle and pedestrian improvements shown on Map 2 of the Town Center 

Plan.   She said that through the Town Center Plan the City was trying to incorporate both sides of 99W 

and ensure that opportunities were available throughout the Six Corners area.  She commented that the 

deleted language included Six Corners which had been identified in the Comprehensive Plan as a regional  

area developing on both sides of the highway to complement each other and not be completely different.   

Note: The deleted language was “consider a mixed use overlay zone in a the development code that will apply to the Six 

Corners area.  Include design standards that will encourage a vibrant, pedestrian friendly environment through the 

implementation of boulevards, medians, mixed-use development and site design”.   

Commissioner Griffin commented that the strategy changes seem unrelated and changed from the Six 

Corners area to bicycle and pedestrian improvements. 

Ms. Rudzinski  responded that the Town Center Plan identified the City’s concentration zone where mixed 

use would be the most appropriate and the Planning Commission’s recommendation was not to ignore 

north of 99W, but that there should be some integration with similar policies. She said she was not aware 

that there was strong support for mixed use and she could see that what was recommended was not a one 

for one replacement, but taking advantage of the space provided by a deleted policy.  She indicated that if 

the existing policy was still valid, and the Town Center Plan did not fulfill the desire then it could remain.  

She said that she thought it was a placeholder for when Six Corners was considered the town center.   

Chair Simson concurred that the mixed use overlay was not as relevant as when the area was the town 

center, but as was testified, the citizens on both sides of the highway need to have the same opportunity 

for bicycle and pedestrian avenues that connect to each other.  She said the Commission fought during the 

town center planning efforts to create cohesion; that Six Corners 

, both north and south of Tualatin Sherwood Road and east and west of Hwy 99 be treated to get the 

connectivity. Ms. Rudzinski replied that she did not think Map 2 would satisfy that for north of the Six 

Corners language to the proposed language so that the support for public and private development of 

bicycle and pedestrians without being confined the map that shows the town center.  The Commission 

was in favor of adding “and within the Six Corners area north and south of the highway”.   

Chair Simson turned to page 73, Goal 5,  Policy 9: The city supports transit service that serves the needs of the 

residents and businesses in and adjacent to the Town Center, including maintaining a robust local transit service network and 

planning for future local and high capacity transit service to neighboring cities.  She asked if there was any concern 

about the language.  Commissioner Griffin commented that it did not tie the city down to anything.  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

18



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 19 of 24 

 

 

Chair Simson turned to page 75, Goal 5, Strategy 4: Work with Metro, as well as the cities of Tualatin and Tigard, 

to explore feasible modes and location to provide high-capacity transit service to the Towne Center and adjacent areas.   She 

said that she was okay with this strategy and expressed concern for Strategy 6: Continue to explore opportunities 

to achieved long term transit supportive densities in the Town Center in order to increase the viability of high-capacity transit.   

Chair Simson said to her it meant an increase in density and expressed concern over that policy decision.  

Commissioner Griffin commented that this concern not wanting to increase density was expressed during 

the town center meetings.   Chair Simson disclosed that the commission felt pressured during the Town 

Center planning process to comply with metro requirements.  She asked if the city was required through 

this process or any other process to increase our densities.   

Ms. Rudzinski responded that it was not required through this process, but as part of having a community 

that can support transit is having enough people and businesses to do that.  High Capacity Transit is very 

destination oriented and there needs to be enough of those to support that type of investment.  Ms. 

Rudzinski reminded that there were also positive comments regarding having transit as an option, but 

ridership drives demand and demand is provided by people and businesses and without one you cannot 

cost effectively have the other.  She said the focus has shifted since the development of the Town Center 

planning away from high capacity transit because it has been deemed not feasible to come all the way to 

Sherwood.  She said Strategy 4 keeps the door open for future planning and Strategy 6 is a question for the 

PlanningCommission to answer.   

Commissioner Griffin declared that it was too far in the wrong direction to continue to explore to increase 

the viability of high capacity transit; he did now think the city was in a position to be looking for that right 

now and that the statement was not relevant at the moment.  He said Sherwood wanted connectivity with 

TriMet and surrounding cities, but the public has not shown interest in light rail or increasing density.  

Chair Simson commented that the buildings shown, in the town center planning process, over three stories 

were received poorly.  Commissioner   Robinson suggested deleting Strategy 6 and keeping Strategy 4.  

The Commission voiced their approval of the suggestion.   

Chair Simson said she was done with her suggestions for Goals and Policies.  Commissioner Griffin 

pointed to page 67, Goal 3, Strategy 19: The City will reexamine local street standards and will explore appropriate 

locations within the City an circumstances under which a narrower street standards may be permitted as part of new 

development.  He said he understood having less impervious surface and commented with words like 

reexamine, consider, explore, and if appropriate the strategy may be vague enough to be acceptable.  

Commissioner Clifford commented on SW Dewey Drive, a curved road with houses on either side, with 

parking on one side and parking was horrible on Fridays because of garbage cans on the street for 

collection and the buses and car traffic. He asked how a situation like that could be avoided.  

Commissioner Cooke concurred that the situation was unsafe.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that the issues 

were a lack of connectivity that forces all the traffic onto one roadway and the design of the road itself.  

He said the cross-sections in the Plan have a narrower local street (28’) and a wider option; there are 

volume thresholds for when each street would be appropriate.  In the update, a road like Dewey, that is a 

higher local volume, would not be a 28 foot wide street and he thought it has already been addressed with 

the cross-sections and the strategy may not be relevant by the work that has been done in the TSP.   

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

19



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 20 of 24 

 

 

Commissioner Walker commented that when the road is built you may not know how much traffic it will 

have.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that when development occurs a traffic study is done for the roadways 

and should consider connectivity in the area and what the TSP forecast has indicated.   Chair Simson 

commented it was probably not envisioned that SW Lynnly and Houston would be accessed the way they 

are either and it is hard to think of using streets more narrow than we already have.   The commission 

wanted to remove Strategy 19.  

Chair Simson noted errors beginning with page 85, the first reference to the TSP should be written out as 

Transportation System Plan and page 88, second paragraph, the and/or should be and.   

Chair Simson turned to page 92, and expressed concern for the existing code for carpool and vanpool 

parking spaces that requires preferential spaces for development with twenty or more employees.  

Commissioner Griffin added that the carpool/vanpool spaces would be required to be located closer to 

the main entrance than all other spaces except for ADA spaces and asked where that came from.  Ms. 

Rudzinski replied that the language was modified language from the model code for small cities and 

commented that it was not a lot of spaces, but a space or two next to the employee entrance and was 

intended to incentivize carpooling to increase the non-single occupant vehicle percentage.  Commissioner 

Simson asked how the twenty employees was determined.  Ms. Rudzinski responded that it did not make 

sense to provide carpool spaces for small businesses, the number is somewhat arbitrary and the intent was 

to incentivize the behavior in the larger businesses.  Commissioner Walker asked if the employees were full 

time or part time.  Ms. Rudzinski answered that the determination would be at development review and 

would not be monitored over time in a community this small.  It would be a one-time deal; for a business 

park, larger employer, or industrial area.  Commissioner Walker suggested increasing the number of 

employees.  Discussion followed regarding the correct number.  Suggestions ranged from a hundred 

employees when TDM requirements are required, forty five for when healthcare is required.  

Commissioner Walker suggested forty full time employees, which was accepted by the Commission.  

Commissioner Clifford asked about local shopping centers that have fifteen minute parking stalls and 

asked if the businesses were offering that or if it was an incentive by the developer.  Ms. Rudzinski 

indicated that she had not seen any code that required them.  Brad Kilby suggested it was a leasing 

incentive and the City only required that a minimum number of parking spaces be provided and how the 

parking is managed is up to the property owner.  Ms. Rudzinski added that a parking management plan 

should be part of development in the Town Center Plan.   

Chair Simson turned to pages 100-101 and asked why the maps were being deleted.  Ms. Rudzinski 

explained it was so that information was not duplicated so that the development code does not have to be 

updated when the TSP updates.  She added that it was unusual to have the maps in the code.   

Chair Simson complimented staff for the article in the May edition of the Sherwood Archer explaining that 

the Capacity Allocation Program (CAP) would be removed.  She indicated that if there were issues from 

the development community, they would be at the hearing, but none were present.  Chair Simson 

explained that Bob Galati had explained why the CAP was no longer relevant in a work session and she 

thought it was a great idea.  She said the citizens had enough notice and opportunity to raise a concern if 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

20



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 21 of 24 

 

they wanted the CAP to remain and it gave her a comfort level that the Commission was doing something 

outside of what citizens would be concerned about.   

Chair Simson turned to pages 96-99, Bicycle Parking and Facilities.  She said the section seemed cost 

prohibitive and needed a defined number of hours for short term and long term parking.  Commissioner 

Griffin stated that the language says long term is defined as at least several hours which needed to be 

clearer.   If it is long term racks, storage rooms, or lockers have to be provided located within one hundred 

feet of the entrance and covered.  He said that could be expensive.   

Chair Simson agreed and turned to the table on page 99.  She said it was an existing table with use 

categories that she thought was in the code, because it was required by Metro in 2005. She said the use 

categories listed in the table did not match the use categories in Sherwood’s code and what was driving the 

number of bicycle spaces required did not align with existing uses.  Chair Simson asked what the City was 

required to put in the code per Metro or any other governing agencies.  Ms. Rudzinski answered that the 

City needs to distinguish between long term and short term   and the definition is by design.  The City may 

identify people who will not only use a bike rack for a certain duration, but to look at it as a design issue in 

providing space for people to feel comfortable leaving the bicycle for a longer period of time.  

Commissioner Griffin said the commission needed to come up with a more concrete way of measuring 

long term parking.   

Ms. Rudzinski answered that the city requires the design to have a certain amount to be long term bicycle 

parking and must have at least one long term space and of the amount required a certain percentage of 

those will be long term. Commissioner Griffin asked what the racks, storage rooms, or lockers were like 

and if they were inside or outside.   Ms. Rudzinski responded that there should be flexibility in the code in 

this respect and examples can be found to guide developers; a plastic locker like the ones found at transit 

centers, a closet area inside, anything as long as somebody feels like they can leave their bike there for 

longer than it takes to go into a convenience store.  She explained that the long term parking is for the 

commuter, student, or employee who will work a shift and does not want to leave their bike vulnerable to 

the elements or to being taken.  She recognized that it was a shift in thinking and was more difficult to 

conceive how it would look in Sherwood, but everyone was struggling with this and figuring out what 

makes sense for their communities. Regarding the table, Ms. Rudzinski said it was not unusual to roll up 

uses, unlike parking requirements that are use oriented.  She said the bicycle parking could be tacked on to 

the parking requirements table, but the existing table would be the easiest way to go, because only the 

design will change not the requirements.  She suggested that looking at the appropriateness of specific 

bicycle parking requirements for specific uses was a longer process.   

Chair Simson pointed out that the last items on the list (colleges, schools, community service, parks and 

open spaces, park and ride facilities) were zoned Institutional Public and should be categorized as such.  

She advocated changing Basic utilities to Industrial and asked what drive up vehicle servicing was.  She was 

informed it was like a Jiffy Lube.  She asked about Drive-thru restaurants and determined that they would 

require bicycle parking with one long term space.  This provided four categories: Residential, Commercial, 

Industrial, and Institutional Public.   

Chair Simson and Commissioner Griffin declared that they were still not happy with the long term 

parking.  Chair Simson repeated her sentiment that it was cost prohibitive.  Brad commented that in 1.d of 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

21



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 22 of 24 

 

the section it requires that at least 50% of the require bicycle parking spaces be long-term.  He noted a project he 

worked on in the private sector for a private school that required 40 parking spaces and commented that 

the 50% requirement would have been an issue.  He said there were different ways to cover the bicycle 

parking and talked about the cantilevered roof on the bathrooms at Stella Olsen Park to provide covered 

bicycle parking.  If cost is a concern the Commission could lower the percentage of required long term 

spaces.     

Chair Simson asked regarding long term parking in a park, where the parking has to been within one 

hundred feet of the entrance and secured or with a security guard.  Councilor Robyn Folsom revealed that 

she was the council liaison to the parks board when the bathrooms were being built and this code 

requirement was a concern. She said it almost stopped the bathrooms from being built.   

Commissioner Cook added that she had a child who bikes around town and she was teaching him to lock 

up his bicycle.  She said she did not see very many bike commuters and did not see an increase in the next 

twenty years.  She said 50% seemed aspirational and a high threshold to reach.  Brad added that he rode 

his bike to work at a previous job and often the employer will make concessions for bicycle commuters.   

Chair Simson and Commissioner Cooke said that their experience was that bicycle commuters would bring 

their bicycles inside the building for long term parking.   Commissioner Cooke intimated that she would be 

comfortable with 25%.   

Ms. Rudzinski reminded that the long term parking requirement was flexible and could be as little as a 

bicycle hook on the wall in the utility closet inside that building. She said it may be difficult at site design 

approval without the building plans, but for the smaller employer it would be easier to accommodate 

inside.  Ms. Rudzinski said there was a lot of flexibility for how to satisfy what secure means and the 

language is not suggesting that Sherwood has to make sure every development has a security guard for one 

bike commuter.   

Chair Simson commented that it may be difficult for an applicant that has to meet all of the code 

requirements with a code requiring racks in an area that is secure or monitored, within a hundred feet of 

the entrance.  Commissioner Griffin asked if the requirement was putting a burden on certain businesses 

and said that he understood the concept of encouraging people to bicycle.  

Commissioner Walker suggested that if the requirement is more than four or five long term spaces then 

the code applies, and if the applicant meets a minimum threshold then the 25% of the parking must be 

long term parking.  Discussion followed with the following language being proposed.  “If required to 

provide eight or more bicycle parking spaces, 25% of those spaces must be long term”.   The commission 

discussed how this would work with Target as an example. They decided that if Target was a new 

development they would be required to provide five long term bicycle parking spaces and that it was a 

reasonable number.   

Commissioner Walker said she was more concerned for the burden placed on the small businesses.  Brad 

commented that he liked long term bike parking for his bike and he did not want to leave it out.  Chair 

Simson asked him that if long term bicycle parking was at City Hall and it met the code if he would park 

his bike there or in his workspace.  Brad responded that he would use the long term parking, because he 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

22



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 23 of 24 

 

did not have room in his work space.  He revealed that when he does ride his bike there is closet under the 

stairs that is available.   

Chris Crean added that when he was a bicycle commuter he used a fenced off area in the parking structure 

that was secured and he would not leave his bicycle outside all day.   Bob Galati commented on bicycle 

lockers that could be rented at a location in Portland.  Mr. Crean commented that they were expensive and 

a secure, covered and fenced area was good.   

Commissioner Robinson asked if the current schools in Sherwood were meeting the criteria being 

discussed and was informed that they probably were not.   She said she did not think much of the 

population in Sherwood commuted and asked if anyone had researched how much of the population was 

being served.  Mr. Maciejewski said those numbers were not available.  Ms. Rudzinski argued that it was a 

“Catch 22” and facilities need to be provided before people will commute by bicycle.  It is a safety and 

security issue and if you do not build it, people won’t commute by bicycle.   Brad related that Sherwood is 

on the scenic route for Washington County and the Commission has discussed ways to do agro-tourism to 

wineries and the city could attract that dynamic.  The commission members confirmed the suggested 

language.   

Commissioner Clifford asked regarding the language requiring the long term spaces to be located within 

one hundred feet of the entrance and asked if it could be changed to be more specific which entrance was 

appropriate.  Commissioner Griffin said it specified that the language indicates that it is the entrance 

accessed by the intended users.  He commented that it did not matter to him where it was located if it was 

inside the building, because it would be out of the rain. Chair Simson suggested that the space could be 

any place inside the building or within 100 feet of the entrance, if outside.  Discussion followed with the 

language changed to “Locate outside spaces within a hundred feet of the entrance that will be accessed by 

the intended users”.  

Chair Simson stated that she had no other concerns or comments and asked the commission for any.    

Commissioner Griffin commented that at the discretion of the City Engineer was used several times in the code 

and asked if that was how it was meant to be.  Bob responded that the TSP goes hand and hand with 

design variations and if an applicant comes up with something outside of the standards they will have to 

justify it, but it will not be a granted for monetary motives.  He said he needed some leeway to take into 

account certain design requirements that are unique; a property that does not fit and development cannot 

work without flexibility.  Bob said it was a balancing act and he did not grant everything that comes in.   

Commissioner Griffin asked if it would stand up at LUBA.   

Chris Crean said he was less concerned about LUBA and more concerned with statutes that allow 

challenges to conditions that seem arbitrary.    A decision that is exclusively at the discretion of a person 

without standards and safeguards could be abused and become arbitrary and capricious decision making.  

He said in this case the way the code and the manual work out, the design exception process allows for 

variations from design standards that are administered by the City Engineer with its own internal standards 

and safeguards to protect against arbitrary decision making by the City Engineering.   Bob added that the 

design standards manual is written in a manner that requires the City Engineer to document decisions, 

with background information and written justification why the exceptions are accepted with limitations 

being placed on them.  He said he liked having the option of trying to make something work, but was very 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

23



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 24 of 24 

 

rigid when it came to the applicability of making a change to a standard and if there is a very good reason 

for it that can be supported.  

With no other comments, the following motion was received. 

Motion: From Commissioner Lisa Walker to forward a recommendation of approval to the City 

Council for PA 14-01 Transportation System Plan Update based on the applicant testimony, public 

testimony received, and the analysis, findings and conditions in the staff report with the 

modifications as discussed. Seconded by Commissioner John Clifford.   

Julia Hajduk asked if the recommendation could be to a “date certain” so the public hearing with the City 

Council did not have to be noticed.  Discussion followed regarding when the Council would be available, 

noticing procedures, deadlines for the grant contract and who pays for the consultants.  The Commission 

decided to re-notice and the vote was taken.   

All present Planning Commissioners voted in favor (Vice Chair James Copfer was absent). 

8.  Adjourn 

Chair Simson adjourned the meeting at 10:35 pm. 

 

 

Submitted by: 

_________________________________________     

Kirsten Allen 

Planning Department Program Coordinator 

 

 

Approval Date: __________________________________ 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

24



 

 

Old Business Agenda 

Item A  

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

25



CEDAR BROOK PUD 

SUPPLEMENTARY RESPONSE TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Michelle Miller, Senior Planner 

City of Sherwood Planning Commission: Chair, Jean Simson 

City of Sherwood 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

 

RE:  Cedar Brook PUD (i.e. City File #’s PUD 14-01 and SUB 14-01). 

 

Dear City of Sherwood Planning Commission, 

 

DR Horton, Inc. has a long standing tradition of developing high quality master planned neighborhoods in 

the City of Sherwood and throughout the greater Metro area and we would like to continue that tradition 

within the City of Shrewood by developing the approximately 5.77-acre parcel that is the subject of City 

File #’s PUD 14-01 and SUB 14-01.  As such, please accept this short letter expressing our position and 

thoughts as they relate to the issues/concerns raised at the June 10
th
 Public Hearing for our proposed 

Cedar Brook PUD.  The following issues/concerns will be addressed by this letter: 

 

1. On-Street and Off-Street Parking – Exhibit “M” 

2. Proposed Setbacks – Exhibit “N”  

3. CC&Rs – Exhibit “O” 

4. City of Sherwood Parking District – Exhibit “P” 

 

16.94.020 - Off-Street Parking Standards 

 

A. Single and two family homes - 1 parking space per dwelling 

 Multi-family - 1.5 for 2 bedrooms and 1.75 for 3 bedrooms 

If the street on which the house has direct access is less than twenty-eight (28) feet wide, two 

(2) off-street parking spaces are required per single-family residential unit (includes single-

family detached or attached, two-family dwelling or a manufactured home on an individual 

lot). If the abutting street is twenty-eight (28) feet or wider, one (1) standard (9 ft. × 20 ft.) 

parking space is required. 
4
 Visitor parking in residential developments: Multi-family dwelling units with more than ten 

(10) required parking spaces shall provide an additional fifteen (15) percent of the required 

number of parking spaces for the use of guests of the residents of the development. The spaces 

shall be centrally located or distributed throughout the development. Required bicycle parking 

facilities shall also be centrally located within or evenly distributed throughout the 

development. 

 

B.   Dimensional and General Configuration Standards 

 

1.   Dimensions For the purpose of this Chapter, a "parking space" means a stall nine 

(9) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 

 

5.   Credit for On-Street Parking 

 

a.   On-Street Parking Credit. The amount of off-street parking required shall 

be reduced by one (1) off-street parking space for every on-street parking space 

Exhibit L 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

26



adjacent to the development. On-street parking shall follow the established 

configuration of existing on-street parking, except that angled parking may be 

allowed for some streets, where permitted by City standards. 

 

b.   The following constitutes an on-street parking space: 

 

(1)  Parallel parking, each twenty-four (24) feet of uninterrupted curb; 

 

RESPONSE: The proposed PUD includes fifteen (15) single-family detached dwelling units, twelve (12) 

rear loaded townhome units, and thirty-eight (38) front loaded townhome units, for a total of sixty-five 

(65) dwelling units.  Twenty-seven (27) of the units will have two (2) car garages with an additional two 

(2) off-street parking spaces provided in front of the garage in the driveway for a total of fifty-four (54) 

off-street parking spaces.  The off-street parking for these units exceeds the requirement of one (1) 

parking space per single-family dwelling unit.  The remaining thirty-eight (38) front loaded townhome 

units will have a one (1) car garage and one (1) parking space provided in front of the garage for a total of 

seventy-six (76) off-street parking spaces.  However, per City Code, the garage is not allowed to be 

considered as part of the off-street parking requirement, therefore, these units technically only have thirty-

eight (38) off-street parking spaces per code requirements.  Nevertheless, as discussed during the hearing, 

the applicant will create CC&Rs for the development that require the garage on each Lot shall be used to 

park the occupant’s primary passenger vehicle, and for no other purpose.  As such, seventy-six off-street 

parking spaces will be available for these units.    

 

The amount of on-street parking spaces provided for the proposed PUD will be seventy-nine (79) parking 

spaces along both SW Cedar Brook Way and proposed SW “A” Street.  Of these parking spaces, thirty-

four (34) on-street parking spaces will be located immediately adjacent to the front loaded townhome 

units.  The remaining forty-five (45) spaces will be located along SW Cedar Brook Way and be available 

for all dwelling units.  Therefore, the proposed sixty-five (65) unit PUD will have a combination of on-

street and off-street parking spaces totaling 267 parking spaces. The Applicant believes that the 

combination of on-street and off-street parking spaces provided for the proposed PUD will be more than 

adequate to serve the needs of the future residences and is in compliance with the above criteria.  

Nevertheless, as discussed during the hearing, the Applicant will work with the City Police Department to 

establish a “Parking District” for the proposed PUD to help with the existing parking issues in the 

surrounding area. 

 

 Cedar Brook PUD Proposed Setbacks 

 

CEDAR BROOK 
DEVELOPMENT DESIGN STANDARDS 

  

REAR-LOAD 

TOWNHOM

E LOTS 

FRONT-LOAD 

TOWNHOME 

LOTS 

SINGLE-

FAMILY 

LOTS 

NOTES 

LOT AREA 1,600 SF 1,600 SF 2,500 SF 
Creates a variety in lot sizes, 

house types and price ranges. 

TYPICAL 

MIN. LOT 

WIDTH 

20' 20' 27.9' 

All proposed single-family 

detached lots within the PUD 

will either meet or exceed the 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

27



minimum lot width standard 

at the front property line along 

Cedar Brook Way. All 

proposed Townhouse lots 

within the PUD will either 

meet or exceed the minimum 

lot width standard of 20-feet.  

MINIMUM 

FRONT YARD 

SETBACKS 

The minimum 

interior front 

yard setback 

will be 4’ to 

the porches, 

which abut 

open space. 

Garage: 

20' 

Front porch of 

house: 

8' 
 

MINIMUM 

SIDE YARD 

SETBACKS 

4’ 4' 4' 
 

MINIMUM 

REAR YARD 

SETBACKS 

20' 15' 20' Meets HDR standard. 

MAX HEIGHT 40' 40' 30' 
Meets or exceeds HDR 

standard. 

 

Response: In order to achieve the desired densities, open space, pedestrian friendly streets, and overall 

appearance of the PUD, deviations to the HDR zone front, side, and rear yard setbacks are requested.  The 

setbacks proposed by the Applicant are the minimum necessary to achieve the density requirements of the 

HDR zoning district, as well as to provide quality opens space areas for the development.   

 

 Cedar Brook PUD Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&Rs) 

 

The proposed private street, common areas, and community facilities, will be maintained by a 

Home Owners’ Association (HOA) created in accordance with all applicable requirements, 

including the Oregon Planned Communities Act.  The Applicant has submitted a draft version of the 

CC&R’s for the Cedar Brook PUD (Exhibit “O”), which includes language requiring property owners to 

keep their garages clear of storage items so the garage is available for the parking of their vehicle(s).  By 

including this language in the CC&Rs, it will make all future homeowners aware of the parking issues 

prior to purchasing a home within the subdivision.  Furthermore, reserve funds will be created and 

maintained which will ensure future improvements and maintenance activities are adequately 

funded.  These documents will be subject to City staff review and approval prior to recording. 
 

Conclusion: 
 

Even though the site is an undeveloped parcel, it is important to understand that the property is severely 

limited due to its irregular shape and by existing street patterns.  We have spent a substantial amount of 

resources in the planning and designing of the proposed Cedar Brook PUD and we strongly believe it is a 

high quality proposal that will contribute significantly to the orderly development of the surrounding area.  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

28



The master planning approach taken for the Cedar Brook PUD ensures an efficient and well planned use 

of the land, planned and timely infrastructure improvements, and a respectful relationship between open 

space and the built environment.  As we hope you recognize from our presentation at the public hearing 

on June 10
th
, we are more concerned about the bigger picture of the City of Sherwood and helping to 

achieve the City’s goals for this region of the City than of just our own individual PUD.  Our proposed 

street locations and ownership pattern is consistent with the City of Sherwood Land Division Ordinance, 

as well as with City Standards and Specifications.   

 

Thus, we respectfully request approval of the proposed PUD as revised and submitted during the hearing. 

 

 

Kind Regards, 

 

Steve Miller 
 

Steve Miller 

Project Manager, DR Horton, Inc. – Portland Division 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

29



Exhibit M

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

30



Exhibit N

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

31



Exhibit O

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

32



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

33



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

34



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

35



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

36



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

37



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

38



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

39



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

40



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

41



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

42



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

43



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

44



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

45



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

46



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

47



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

48



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

49



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

50



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

51



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

52



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

53



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

54



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

55



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

56



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

57



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

58



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

59



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

60



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

61



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

62



Exhibit P

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

63



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

64



 

 

New Business Agenda 

Item A  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

65



 

Page 1 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

CITY OF SHERWOOD                                        June 16, 2014  
Staff Report                 File No: LA 14-01 
 
Kelley House Addition 

 

TO: Planning Commission   

             
 

Pre-App. Meeting:  
App. Submitted: 
App. Complete: 
Hearing Date:  
120 Day Deadline: 
 

N/A 
May 21, 2014 
June 2, 2014 
June 24, 2014 
September 30, 2014 

 
From: 
 
    
______________________ 
Brad Kilby, AICP  
Planning Manager 
  
Proposal: The applicant is proposing a Landmark Alteration for a 1,500 square foot addition to 
an existing home in Old Town. The property is zoned Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) 
and located within the Smockville area of the Old Town Overlay. The applicant’s submittal 
materials are attached to this report as Exhibit A. 
 
I. BACKGROUND 

 
 
Applicant/Owner: 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: 

 

 
Rob Kelley 
22455 SW Oak Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
 
 
 
Rob Kelley 
503-939-7140 

B. Location: 22455 SW Oak Street. WCTM 2S132BA tax lot 02900.  
 

C. Parcel Size: 5,000 Square Feet 
 
D. Existing Development and Site Characteristics: The site is fairly flat and currently 

developed with an existing single-family residence and detached garage.  

 
E. Site History:  According to the owner, the home was constructed in the 1930’s or 1940’s. 

The most recent historical survey conducted and reported to the Planning Commission 
in 2012 refers to the home as a minimal traditional style of architecture.        
 

F. Zoning Classification and Comprehensive Plan Designation:  The subject property is 
zoned (MDRL) Medium Density Residential Low within the Smockville area of the Old 
Town Overlay zone, a designated historic district which seeks to preserve and enhance 
the area’s commercial viability and historic character. 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

66



 

Page 2 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

G. Adjacent Zoning and Land Use: The subject property is surrounded on four sides by 
properties that are also zoned MDRL.  The property directly to the west of the site is 
vacant. Properties to the south include the parking lot for the Argonne Post of the 
American Legion. Properties to the north and east are developed with single-family 
residences.  

 
H. Review Type: Because the proposed alterations are to a building located within the 

Sherwood Old Town overlay, the application is subject to a Type IV review which 
requires review and approval by the Planning Commission after conducting a public 
hearing.  An appeal would be heard by the Sherwood City Council. 

 
I. Public Notice and Hearing:  This application was processed consistent with the 

standards in effect at the time it was submitted. A neighborhood meeting was held on 
April 2, 2014 and an open house invitation on April 3, 2014 at the subject site in 
downtown Sherwood.  Nobody attended the meeting or open house.  

 
 Notice of the application was mailed to property owners within at least 1,000 feet of the 

subject property and posted on the property and in five locations throughout the City on 
June 2, 2014 in accordance with Section 16.72.020 of the SZCDC. The notice was 
published in the June 1st edition of the Gazette, and in the June 19th edition of the Tigard 
Times (a paper of general circulation) in accordance with Section 16.72.020 of the 
SZCDC. 
 

J. Review Criteria:  Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code, (16.12 
Residential Land Use Districts- MDRL) 16.162 (Old Town Overlay District), and where 
applicable 16.168 (Landmark Alteration). 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Public notice was mailed and posted on the property, and in five locations throughout the City 
on June 2, 2014. Staff received no public comments as of the date of this report. However, 
comments are accepted until the Planning Commission closes the public hearing. 
 
III. AGENCY COMMENTS 
  
Staff sent e-notice to affected agencies on June 2, 2014.  The following is a summary of the 
comments received.  Copies of full comments are included in the record unless otherwise noted. 
 
Sherwood Engineering Department: The City Engineer provided comments that indicated that 
all public services were currently available to the site, and that any new easements for public or 
private utilities would need to be recorded with Washington County. Any public infrastructure 
improvements or upgrades would need to be protected with a two-year maintenance bond.   
 
Clean Water Services: Provided written comments indicating that they have no concerns or 
objections to the proposal.   
 
PGE: Henry English of PGE provided e-mail comments indicating that there were no apparent 
conflicts to the service provider, and stated that any upgrades or relocation of service would 
need to be reviewed and approved. 
 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

67



 

Page 3 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue: John Wolff, Fire Marshall with TVFR provided an e-mail 
indicating that the district had no objections or concerns to the proposal.   
 
The Sherwood Building Department, Public Works, METRO, BPA, Raindrops to Refuge, Tri-
Met, the Sherwood School District, Washington County, PGE, Kinder Morgan Energy, and NW 
Natural Gas were also notified of this proposal and did not respond or provided no comments to 
the request for agency comments by the date of this report.  
 
IV. APPLICABLE CODE PROVISIONS 

 
16.12 Residential Land Use Districts 
 
16.12.020. - Allowed Residential Land Uses 
 
A. Residential Land Uses 
The table below identifies the land uses that are allowed in the Residential Districts. The 
specific land use categories are described and defined in Chapter 16.10. 
 
RECOMMENDED FINDING: Single-Family residences are an outright permitted use within the 
MDRL Zone.  The proposed addition to the home would therefore be an expansion of an 
outright permitted use.  
 
16.12.030 Residential Land Use Development Standards 
 
B. Development Standards 
Except as modified under Chapter 16.68 (Infill Development), Section 16.144.030 
(Wetland, Habitat and Natural Areas) Chapter 16.44 (Townhomes), or as otherwise 
provided, required minimum lot areas, dimensions and setbacks shall be provided in the 
following table.  
 
C. Development Standards per Residential Zone 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: Table 16.12.030.C. outlines the minimum dimensional requirements for 
development within the residential zoning on properties in the City of Sherwood. The lot that the 
home sits on is an existing 5,000 square foot lot. The minimum lot size in the MDRL is 5,000 
square feet. The minimum lot width at the building line is 50 feet and the minimum lot depth is 
80 feet for the MDRL zone.  In this case, the lot width at the building line is 50 feet and the lot 
depth is 80 feet. The maximum height within the MDRL zone is 30 feet or 2 stories whichever is 
less.  As proposed, the addition would be a two-story 25 foot high structure. The existing home 
does not meet the minimum required setbacks.  The existing setbacks appear to be 9-feet to the 
property line along SW First Avenue.  The setback to SW Oak Street appears to be 4-feet to the 
home and 8-feet to the face of the garage.  The rear yard setback appears to be 2-feet to the 
property line, and the side yard setback to the west property line looks to be 10 feet.   
 
The applicant proposes to add living space between the existing primary home and the garage 
along the existing building line as it fronts SW Oak Street.  The existing home and the 
expansion would be nonconforming with respect to the setbacks along SW Oak Street, but 
would not exacerbate any of the existing setback non-conformities to the other property lines.  
All other development standards outlined by the table in 16.12.030.C are satisfied by the 
proposal.  
 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

68



 

Page 4 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

Section 16.162.070.F allows the non-conforming use restrictions within Chapter 16.48 to be 
waived by the Commission when, in their determination, it is fully consistent with the goals and 
standards of the OT overlay zone and other city guidelines to preserve, restore, and enhance 
historic resources.  All buildings within the existing Old Town Overlay are considered landmarks, 
and reviewed under the provisions of the landmark alterations chapter.  Section 16.48.070.B 
allows a non-conforming structure to be enlarged if in the Commission’s determination, the 
change will not have greater adverse impacts on surrounding properties, in this instance, with 
respect to the character and history of development in the surrounding area, the comparative 
visual appearance, or other factors which tend to reduce conflicts or compatibility with the 
character or needs of the area.   
 
The approval criteria related to expanding non-conforming structures are subjective, but in 
staff’s view, there are several instances of single-family residences in Old Town with non-
conforming setbacks.  Many of these cases are the result of construction practices that predate 
modern zoning.  There have been no comments or any information presented to staff to indicate 
why this proposed expansion would negatively impact surrounding properties or negatively 
affect the goals and aspirations of the Old Town overlay zone. As mentioned previously, the 
setback affected by this expansion in no way increases the impacts on surrounding properties.  
The expansion and existing home along this setback continues to be separated from the 
nearest structure by the width of the setback on this property, the setback on the other property, 
and an intervening right-of-way.   
 
RECOMMENDED FINDING: With the exception of the setbacks to property lines, all of the 
dimensional requirements of table 16.12.030.C.  In reference to the setbacks and the proposed 
expansion, the only setback affected by the proposal is the setback along SW Oak Street which 
is currently 4-feet.  The proposed expansion is located within the Old Town Overlay, and after 
review of the proposal there is no evidence presented within the record to suggest that the 
proposal is inconsistent with the goals and standards of the Overlay zone to preserve, restore, 
and enhance the zone.  In other words, this is a single-family home whose expansion either 
meets, or has been conditioned to meet the design standards outlined in Section 16.162 (Old 
Town Overlay District). Therefore, the Planning Commission sees no reason to allow the 
proposed structure to be expanded consistent with the proposal simply because the setback is 
not met.       
 
A. Division IX – Historic Resources 
 The applicable provisions of Division IX include: 
16.162 Old Town Overlay District (OT) 
 

16.162.060 Dimensional Standards  

 

In the OT overlay zone, the dimensional standards of the underlying RC, HDR and MDRL 
zones shall apply, with the following exceptions: 

 

A. Lot Dimensions - Minimum lot area (RC zoned property only): Twenty-five hundred 
(2,500) square feet. 

 

B. Setbacks - Minimum yards (RC zoned property only): None, including structures 
adjoining a residential zone, provided that Uniform Building Code, Fire District 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

69



 

Page 5 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

regulations, and the site design standards of this Code, not otherwise varied by this 
Chapter, are met. 

 

C. Height - The purpose of this standard is to encourage 2 to 4 story mixed-use 
buildings in the Old Town area consistent with a traditional building type of ground 
floor active uses with housing or office uses above.  

 

Except as provided in Section 16.162.080, subsection C below, the maximum height 
of structures in RC zoned property shall be forty (40) feet (3 stories) in the 
"Smockville Area" and fifty (50) feet (4 stories) in the "Old Cannery Area". 
Limitations in the RC zone to the height of commercial structures adjoining 
residential zones, and allowances for additional building height as a conditional use, 
shall not apply in the OT overlay zone. However, five foot height bonuses are 
allowed under strict conditions. Chimneys, solar and wind energy devices, radio and 
TV antennas, and similar devices may exceed height limitations in the OT overlay 
zone by ten (10) feet.  

 

Minimum height: A principal building in the RC and HDR zones must be at least 
sixteen (16) feet in height. (Ord. 2006-009 § 2) 

 

D. Coverage - Home occupations permitted as per Chapter 16.42 and Section 
16.162.030 may occupy up to fifty percent (50%) of the entire floor area of all 
buildings on a lot. (Ord. 2002-1128 § 3; 94-946; 87-859) 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The property is zoned Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL). The 
proposed expansion is subject to the dimensions of Chapter 16.12 which have been discussed 
previously in this report. There are no home occupations associated with this use or request.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: These criteria are not affected by the proposed expansion.  

 
16.162.090 OLD TOWN SMOCKVILLE DESIGN STANDARDS 

 

B.  REMODELING OF EXISTING RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES  

Remodeling Standard 1: Original Elements  

 

Elements that are original to a vintage, traditional or historic structure (defined in this 
standard as primary, secondary, or any structure 50 years or older that is eligible for 
landmark designation and professionally surveyed) are an important characteristic. 
These elements enhance appeal and retain the overall historic fabric of a neighborhood. 
In most cases, buildings with these original parts can and should be restored, first by 
restoring the original and, if that is not possible, replacing only those parts that are 
missing or badly damaged with in-kind material. With few exceptions, total replacements 
are unnecessary unless the original materials were not historically compatible or 
traditional at the time of construction. The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitation should be consulted in situations not covered by these standards. Where 
alterations to an exterior structure are proposed, they shall conform to the following: 

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

70



 

Page 6 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

a. Doors: The original door and opening shall be retained, unless beyond local 
repair. If a new door must be used the style should match the original whenever 
possible. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The existing home was built in the 1930’s-1940’s. This particular 
structure was not surveyed as part of the 1989 historic survey of Sherwood. The proposed 
alterations appear to include the removal of the door and porch that front SW Second 
Avenue, and place a primary entrance along the SW Oak Street frontage. According to the 
applicant, the proposed addition will maintain all door and window designs of the existing 
structure. In a cursory review by staff, the applicable Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
Rehabilitation indicate that preservation is preferred over removing characteristics, but when 
removal is necessary, “New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will 
not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the 
property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the 
historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of 
the property and its environment.” And, “New additions and adjacent or related new 
construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential 
form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.” The 
expansion is proposed in a way that does not appear to compromise the overall 
characteristic of the home, and will definitely be distinct from the original structure in that it is 
two stories as opposed to one.    

  

b. Windows: Original windows shall be retained and, if necessary, restored to 
working condition. If desired, they can be insulated using the energy conservation 
methods listed below. Original glass should be retained whenever possible. If all 
of the above is not possible, then the frame shall be retained and a true retrofit 
sash replacement shall be installed that matches the glass pattern of the original 
window. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed alterations appear to retain all of the existing windows 
with the exception of those located on the northeast elevation of the existing home. The 
windows would be replaced with the wall of the proposed expansion. The applicant’s 
designer has indicated that the style of the existing windows will be maintained on the street 
facing sides of the home.  

 

c. Chimneys: Chimneys made of brick or stone shall be retained, and repaired using 
proper masonry techniques and compatible mortar that will not chemically react 
with the original masonry and cause further deterioration. If the chimney is no 
longer in use, the opening should be covered with a metal or concrete cap. If the 
chimney is to be used, but has been determined to be unsound, the chimney 
masonry should be retained, as above, and a new flue inserted into the opening. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no proposed chimneys with this expansion.  The existing 
chimney does not appear to be made of brick as it is wrapped in tar paper and has a metal 
cap. The existing chimney would need to be removed for the proposed expansion.  

 

d. Skylights: Skylights should be placed on the side of the structure not visible from 
the public right of way, and should be of a low profile type design. 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

71



 

Page 7 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no proposed skylights with this alteration.   

 

e. Gutters: Original gutters should be retained, if possible. Half round gutters and 
round downspouts are highly desirable, and can be obtained from local 
manufacturers. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The plans do not include the removal or installation of gutters.   

 

f. Architectural Elements: Window trim, corner board trim, sills, eave decorations, 
eave vents, porch posts, and other types of original architectural trim should be 
retained. If parts are missing, they should be replicated using the same 
dimensions and materials as the original. If only a portion is damaged, the portion 
itself should be repaired or replaced, rather than replacing the whole element. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant’s designer indicates that all existing window styles will be 
maintained with the proposed expansion, but indicates that there are no other existing or 
proposed unique architectural details.     

 

g. Siding: Original siding should be maintained; first repairing damaged sections 
then, if that is not possible, replacing damaged or missing sections with in-kind 
matching material. In some cases, original siding may have been overlaid during a 
later historic period with combed cedar siding, which is a historically appropriate 
material that may be retained if desired. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant has proposed to maintain the original siding, and repair 
any damaged areas with matching materials.  The expansion would include matching siding 
and a 10” belly band to break up the street facing façade.  

 

h. Weatherization & Energy Conservation: Modern energy conservation results can 
be obtained, by using traditional conservation methods. Attics and floors should 
be insulated to conserve heat loss in the winter and insulate against the heat in 
the summer. Windows and doors should be caulked around the inside trim, and 
copper leaf spring type weather stripping or similar installed to seal leaks. Storm 
windows (exterior or interior mounted) should be put up during the winter months 
to create insulation. Windows can be further insulated in winter using insulated-
type curtains or honeycomb blinds; in summer, curtains or blinds reflect heat. 
Using deciduous trees and plants for additional sun protection. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant has indicated that the proposed expansion will meet the 
today’s building codes for weatherization and energy conservation. Existing windows and doors 
will be caulked around the inside trim and to seal any leaks that are discovered.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: As proposed, the alteration appears to carry on the same theme 
and materials as the existing home. Original materials are maintained when feasible, and 
replaced or repaired with like materials when necessary. The proposed alterations are keeping 
with the existing exterior design and materials; therefore, these criteria have been satisfied.  

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

72



 

Page 8 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

 

Remodeling Standard 2: Front Facing Presentation  

 

Traditionally, the portions of a structure facing the public right of way were considered 
the most important for presenting an aesthetically pleasing appearance. Skylights were 
not used, and there was very little venting since the structures were not tightly enclosed 
and wrapped as they are today. Therefore, keeping all modern looking venting and 
utilities to the side that is not visible from the public right of way is important and greatly 
adds to the appearance. 

 

 a. Skylights: Skylights shall be placed on the side of the structure not visible from 
the public right-of-way, and shall be of a low profile design. 

 

b. Roof vents: Roof vents should, wherever possible, be placed on the side of the 
structure least visible from the public right of way, and painted to blend with the 
color of the roofing material. Where possible, a continuous ridge vent is preferred 
over roof jacks for venting purposes. In the case of using a continuous ridge vent 
with a vintage structure, care should be taken in creating inconspicuous air 
returns in the eave of the building. 

 

 c. Plumbing vents: Vents should, wherever possible, be placed on the side of the 
structure least visible from the public right of way, and painted to blend with the 
color of the roofing material. 

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed alteration does not propose to modify the front 
facing presentation of the building with skylights, roof vents, or plumbing vents. The applicant 
has indicated that all roof and plumbing vents will be installed on the rear slope of the home 
opposite of SW Oak Street and painted to blend in with the composite roofing.  This criterion is 
satisfied. 

 

16.168 LANDMARK ALTERATIONS 

 

16.168.020 ALTERATION STANDARDS  

 

The following general standards are applied to the review of alteration, construction, 
removal, or demolition of designated landmarks that are subject to this Chapter. In 
addition, the standards and guidelines of any applicable special resource zone or 
historic district shall apply. In any landmark alteration action, the Landmarks Advisory 
Board shall make written findings indicating compliance with these standards. 

 

1. Generally 

 

A. Every reasonable effort has been made by the property owner, in the City's 
determination, to provide a use of the landmark which requires minimal alteration of 
the structure, site, or area. 

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

73



 

Page 9 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed expansion does not appear to alter the architectural 
appearance of the main structure, although all structures within Old Town are considered 
landmarks. There is nothing unique to this structure that would make it stand out.    

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed alterations are made in a manner that minimizes 
the alterations to the original character of the building. This criterion is satisfied.  

 

B. In cases where the physical or structural integrity of a landmark is questionable the 
proposed alterations are the minimum necessary to preserve the landmarks 
physical or structural integrity, or to preserve the feasibility of the continued 
occupation, or use of the landmark given its structural condition. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There has been no written or visible evidence provided to suggest that 
the physical or structural integrity of the building is questionable.  The home appears to have 
withstood the test of time, and appears to be soundly on its foundation.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: This criterion is not applicable to the proposed development.  

 

C. In cases where the landmark has been significantly altered in the past, that it is 
technically feasible to undertake alterations tending to renovate, rehabilitate, repair 
or improve the landmark to historic standards given those prior alterations. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The outside of the building does not appear to have been significantly 
altered in the past.  As proposed, the expansion would maintain the historic character of the 
building consistent with the criteria listed in the Old Town Smockville Design Standards as 
discussed above.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed expansion is proposed in a manner that is 
consistent with the existing character of the structure within the historical context of the site. 
This criterion is satisfied.  

 

D. The compatibility of surrounding land uses, and the underlying zoning designation 
of the property on which the historic resource is sited, with the historic resources 
continued use and occupation, and with the renovation, rehabilitation, repair, or 
improvement of the resource to historic standards. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed expansion would maintain the existing use.  The Old 
Town overlay includes a mix of uses and this continues the existing use of the structure as a 
single-family home that is consistent with the historic character of the area.   

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed alterations are compatible with the surrounding 
land uses, and consistent with the Old Town overlay standards.  This criterion is satisfied.  

 

E. Alterations shall be made in accordance with the historic character of the landmark 
as suggested by the historic resources inventory and other historic resources and 
records. Alterations to landmarks within special historic districts shall, in addition, 
be made in accordance with the standards and guidelines of that zone or district. 

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

74



 

Page 10 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The home is existing, is not recognized within the 1989 Sherwood 
Historic Resources Inventory, and despite its age, not a recognizable or unique landmark.  
The proposed expansion is consistent with the historic character of the building.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed expansion is in accordance with the historic 
character of the building, and is consistent with the applicable standards and guidelines 
within the Old Town Overlay, more specifically the Smockville Design standards. This 
criterion is satisfied.  

 

F.  Alterations that have no historic basis and that seek to create a thematic or stylistic 
appearance unrelated to the landmark or historic district's architectural history and 
vernacular based on the original architecture or later architecturally or historically 
significant additions shall not be permitted.  (Ord. 2006-009 § 2; 94-990 § 1; 92-946; 
Ord. 86-851)  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed expansion of the existing home does not seek to 
redefine the theme of Old Town or include a style that is different than the historic 
appearance of the structure. The proposal is consistent with the character of the area. This 
criterion is not applicable.  

 

2. Architectural Features 

 

A. The distinguished original qualities or character of a landmark shall not be 
destroyed. The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural features shall be avoided. Distinctive stylistic or architectural features 
or examples of skilled craftsmanship which characterize a landmark shall be 
preserved. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As mentioned previously, the proposed expansion would maintain the 
majority of the existing structure and carry forward the original character of the home.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed expansion is sensitive to the historic character of 
the house, and does not include the destruction of any distinctive architectural features or 
materials of the existing home. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed alteration.  

 

B. Deteriorated architectural features shall be restored wherever possible. In the event 
replacement is necessary, the new materials should match the material being 
replaced in composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant has proposed to maintain the original siding, and repair 
any damaged areas with matching materials. They have proposed to caulk the interior 
windows and door to seal up any leaks.   

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The home does not appear to have any deteriorated 
architectural features. This criterion is not applicable.  

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

75



 

Page 11 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

C. Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based, wherever 
possible, on accurate duplications of said features, substantiated by historic, 
physical, or pictorial evidence, rather than on conjectural designs or the availability 
of different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant is proposing to expand the existing structure with 
architecturally compatible materials utilizing the same dimensions. There are no known 
missing architectural features unique to this structure.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: This criterion is not applicable to the proposed expansion of the 
home.  

 

D. The surface cleaning of landmarks shall be undertaken using methods generally 
prescribed by qualified architects and preservationists. Sandblasting and other 
cleaning methods that will damage historic building materials shall not be 
undertaken. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant has not proposed to sandblast or clean the building with 
any abrasive material that would damage the building. 

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: This criterion is not applicable to the proposed development.  

 

E. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to landmarks may be allowed 
when such alterations and additions do not, in the City's determination, destroy 
significant historical, architectural, or cultural features, and such design is 
compatible with the size, scale, color, material, and character of the designated 
landmark or historical district. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed expansion appears to be sensitive to the historic 
character of the building and as discussed above, appears to be consistent with the 
underlying design standards for the Old Town Smockville Overlay.  

 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed house expansion does not destroy the historical, 
architectural, or cultural features of the building, and is compatible with the district in which 
the house is located. This criterion is satisfied.  

F. Whenever possible, new additions or alterations to landmarks shall be done in such 
a manner that, if such additions or alterations were removed in the future, the 
historic form and integrity of the landmark would be unimpaired. (Ord. 94-990 § 1; 
92-946; Ord. 86-851) 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed addition does not affect the structural integrity of the 
existing building.  If the addition were removed in the future, there is no evidence in the 
record to suggest that the building could not be further rehabilitated and restored to its 
current state.  

 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

76



 

Page 12 of 12 

LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Landmark Alteration 

RECOMMENDED FINDING: The proposed expansion is consistent with the character of the 
existing home, and is proposed in such a manner that does not affect the historic integrity of 
the home. This criterion is satisfied.  

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon review of the applicant’s submittal information, review of the code, agency 
comments and consideration of the applicant’s revised submittal, staff finds that the requested 
approval appears to fully comply with the applicable standards of the SZCDC.  Therefore, staff 
recommends land use approval of File No: LA 14-01 with the following Condition. 

 
 

VI. CONDITION 
 

1. The applicant shall construct the proposed home expansion in a manner that is 
consistent with the plans dated May 21, 2014, and shall obtain all necessary approvals 
prior to final occupancy of the addition. 

 
VII. ATTACHMENT 

 
A. Applicant’s submitted materials – Exhibit A  

 
 

 
 

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

77



Attachement A

Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

78



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

79



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

80



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

81



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

82



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

83



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

84



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

85



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

86



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

87



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

88



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

89



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

90



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

91



Plannning C
om

m
ission M

eeting 
June 24, 2014

92



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

93



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

94



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

95



Plannning Commission Meeting 
June 24, 2014

96


	001 Planning Commission Meeting  Packet Cover
	002 06.24.14 PC Agenda
	003 05.27.14 PC Minutes DRAFT
	004 Old Business Agenda Slip Sheet A
	005 Exhibit L Cedar Brook PUD PC Memo_6 16 2014
	006 Exhibit M PUD 14-01 SUB 14-01 Cedar Brook PUD
	007 Exhibit N PUD 14-01 SUB 14-01 Cedar Brook PUD
	008 Exhibit O PUD 14-01 SUB 14-01 Cedar Brook PUD
	009 Exhibit P PUD 14-01 SUB 14-01 Cedar Brook PUD
	010 New Business Agenda Item A
	011 LA 14-01 Kelley House Addition Staff Report 06.16.14
	012 LA 14-01 22455 SW Oak Application v1_0
	013 LA 14-01 22455 SW Oak Narrative 5.21.14 v1_0
	014 LA 14-01 22455 SW Oak Plans v1_0
	015 LA 14-01 22455 SW Oak Neighborhood Meeting v1_0
	015 LA 14-01 22455 SW Oak Property Deed v1_0
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



